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(Page 659 inadver tent ly  l e f t  blank. Transcr ip t  
continues i n  sequence w i th  Page 660.) 
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P R O C E E D I N G S  

(Transcr ip t  con t i  nues i n sequence from 

lo1 ume 4. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We are back on t h e  record. And the  

i ex t  witness i s  Mr. Southwick. 

Mr. Fama, are you going t o  present Mr. Southwick? 

MR. FAMA: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You may proceed. 

HENRY I. SOUTHWICK 

vas c a l l e d  as a witness on behal f  o f  Gr idF lo r ida  Companies and, 

lav ing  been du ly  sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as fo l lows:  

D I  RECT EXAM I NATION 

3Y MR. FAMA: 

Q Please s ta te  your name. 

A 

Q 

My name i s  Henry Southwick. 

And you have appeared i n  t h i s  hearing already as p a r t  

3 f  t he  panel, i s  t h a t  cor rec t?  

A That i s  co r rec t .  

Q 

A 

Q Mr. Southwick, I c a l l  your 

testimony and your p r e f i  1 ed exh ib i t s .  

H I S - 1 ,  HIS-2, and HIS-3? 

And on whose behal f  are you 

I am appearing on behal f  o f  

A Yes, t h a t  i s  co r rec t .  

appearing a t  t h i s  time? 

the  j o i n t  appl icants.  

t t e n t i o n  t o  your p r e f i l  d 

You have three exh ib i t s ,  

Q Were the  p r e f i l e d  testimony and t h e  three e x h i b i t s  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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prepared under your d i  r e c t i  on and control  ? 

A Yes. 

Q 

t e s t  i mony? 

And do you adopt t h i s  testimony today as your 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Do you have any correct ions you need t o  make i n  the 

p r e f i l e d  testimony or  the  three exh ib i ts?  

A No. 

Q Mr. Southwick, do you have a b r i e f  opening summary 

you would l i k e  t o  make? 

A Yes. The three Gr idFlor ida companies organized 

GridFlor ida LLC i n  March 2001 t o  undertake the  i n i t i a l  s t a r t - u p  

a c t i v i t i e s  f o r  the RTO. We h i r e d  Accenture t o  develop a 

b luepr in t  and cost estimates f o r  Gr idFlor ida.  Throughout the 

process the three companies worked c lose ly  w i t h  Accenture t o  

minimize the expected costs f o r  u t i l i z a t i o n  o f  e x i s t i n g  

f a c i l i t i e s  t o  the extent possible.  No f u r t h e r  development work 

on GridFlor ida has occurred since the completion o f  the  

b luepr in t  pending the completion o f  these proceedings. 

My testimony here establ ishes t h a t  t he  GridFlor ida 

companies are managing the  development o f  Gr idFlor ida i n  a 

prudent manner and t h a t  t he  estimated costs associated w i th  the  

Sr idFlor ida have been developed i n  a reasonable and prudent 

fashion. That 's  it. 

MR. FAMA: Thank you, M r .  Southwick. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Mr. Chairman, we need t o  have the  th ree  e x h i b i t s  

marked. I bel ieve the next e x h i b i t  number i s  17. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes. Show marked as a Composite 

Exh ib i t  H I S - 1 ,  2, and 3, and we w i l l  move Mr. Southwick's 

testimony i n t o  the record. Without ob ject ion,  show M r .  

Southwick's s p r e f i l e d  testimony moved i n t o  the  record as 

though read. 

(Composite E x h i b i t  17 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

6 6 3  

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY - DOCKET No. 001 148-El 

FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION - DOCKET No. 000824-El 

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY - DOCKET No. 01 0577-El 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF HENRY 1. SOUTHWICK 

ON BEHALF OF THE GRIDFLORIDA COMPANIES 

INTRODU CTl ON 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Henry I .  Southwick. My business address is Post Office Box 

14042, St. Petersburg, Florida 33733. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am employed by Florida Power Corporation (“FPC”) as Manager, 

Regional Transmission Organization Development. 

Please provide a brief outline of your educational background and 

business experience. 

I have a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from 

Clemson University and a Master‘s Degree in Engineering from the 

University of South Florida. I am a registered Professional Engineer in the 

State of Florida. I began working at FPC in 1967 where I have held 

various positions in Industrial Development, Division Operations, System 

Planning, Economic Research, Fossil Operations, and Energy Control. In 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

1983 I was promoted to Manager of System Planning with the 

responsibility for FPC’s generation, transmission and distribution planning. 

In 1990 I was named Director of Engineering and Technical Services for 

Fossil Operations. I was Director of Energy Control from 1992 through 

early 2000. In May of 2000 I assumed my current position. 

What are your responsibilities in your current position? 

My responsibility is to manage the participation of FPC in the development 

of a regional transmission organization (“RTO”). 

What is the purpose of your direct testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to explain how FPC, Florida Power & Light 

Company (“FPL”) and Tampa Electric Company (“TECO”) (collectively, the 

“GridFlorida Companies”) are managing the development of GridFlorida 

on an interim basis in a prudent manner. The testimony also 

demonstrates that the GridFlorida Companies have developed the 

aggregate estimated costs associated with GridFlorida in a reasonable 

and prudent manner. 

What issues in this case does your testimony address? 

My testimony is part of the case being put on by the GridFlorida 

Companies to address Issue 4 (What are the estimated costs to the 

utility’s ratepayers of its participation in GridFlorida?) and Issue 6 (Is the 

utility’s decision to participate in GridFlorida prudent?) of the Order 

2 
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Identifying Issues in Phase 1 issued on July 16, 2001, in the above 

referenced dockets. 

Are you sponsoring any exhibits to your direct testimony? 

Yes. Exhibit No. (HIS-I) is a letter agreement, executed by the 

GridFlorida Companies that describes the types of costs to be included as 

start up costs in connection with the development of GridFlorida. Exhibit 

No. - (HIS-2) is a copy of the Request for Information Regarding 

Program Management Services and Business Systems (“RFI”) described 

below. Exhibit No. - (HIS-3) is a presentation of the evaluation of the 

proposals received in response to the RFI. 

FORMATION OF GRIDFLORIDA LLC 

Q. What is GridFlorida LLC? 

A. GridFlorida LLC is a Florida limited liability company formed by FPC, FPL 

and TECO initially for the purpose of creating an RTO in the State of 

Florida. As I explain below, after GridFlorida becomes operational, 

GridFlorida LLC will continue to exist as the limited liability company that 

owns and operates transmission facilities. This entity will, at 

commencement of commercial operations, assume ownership of the 

transmission assets of TECO and FPL and operational control of the 

transmission assets of FPC, and become the RTO, if the GridFlorida 

project goes forward. Upon commercial operation, management of 
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GridFlorida LLC would be transferred to GF Inc, a Florida corporation, 

which, in turn, would be controlled by an independent board of directors. 

When was GridFlorida LLC organized? 

GridFlorida was organized as a limited liability company on March 8, 2001. 

Copies of the articles of organization of GridFlorida LLC and the initial 

consents of the Board of Managers are contained in GridFlorida 

Companies’ Witness Naeve Exhibit No. - (CMN-I). 

What was the purpose of organizing GridFlorida LLC in March? 

The GridFlorida Companies formed GridFlorida LLC in order to undertake 

the initial start up activities that would have to be accomplished in order to 

meet the December 15, 2001 RTO operational date established by FERC 

in Order No. 2000. 

What kind of start up activities were contemplated for GridFlorida 

LLC? 

We needed a corporate entity in place to hire an executive search firm to 

identify candidates for the board of directors of GF, Inc., the entity that will 

ultimately serve as the managing member of GridFlorida LLC. Also, in 

order to adhere to our schedule, it was necessary to select and hire a 

consultant in the first quarter to do the initial planning and budgeting for 

GridFlorida. Finally, a corporate entity had to be in place to set up a bank 

account to pay GridFlorida LLC expenses, procure insurance, establish 

4 
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employee benefit plans, enter into leases for office space, put accounting 

systems into place, and engage in other start up activities. 

Why were these start up activities not deferred until a later time? 

The GridFlorida Companies designed a board selection process that 

would ensure that a high level, independent board of directors would be 

selected. Such a process would necessarily take time. A corporate entity 

had to be formed first to hire the executive search firm to begin the board 

selection process. After selection, the board would hire a chief executive 

officer. This process was not expected to be completed and the 

individuals in place until the third quarter of 2001 at the earliest. After the 

board and CEO were in place, other officers and employees would need 

to be hired, which would take additional time. Thus, these start up 

activities had to begin immediately if GridFlorida was to meet its 

December 15, 2001 deadline. Nor could the other start up activities listed 

above be delayed. The GridFlorida Companies believed that it was 

important to make a good faith effort to meet the December 15,2001 

deadline imposed by FERC and their work plan and business blueprint 

reflects this effort. 

How is GridFlorida LLC managed? 

GridFlorida LLC is managed by a board of managers comprised of 

representatives for each of FPC, FPL and TECO. Marty Mennes is the 

representative for FPL and Greg Ramon is the representative for TECO. I 
5 
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am the representative for FPC. All decisions of the board of managers 

require unanimous vote of the three representatives. 

Is there an agreement governing the management of GridFlorida 

LLC? 

Yes. The Interim Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement for 

GridFlorida LLC governs board meetings, voting and other functions of 

GridFlorida LLC. A copy of this agreement is contained in GridFlorida 

Companies’ Witness Naeve Exhibit No. - (CMN-1). 

Does GridFlorida LLC have any employees? 

No. GridFlorida LLC start up activities have been undertaken by 

Accenture and by employees of the three companies and there are no 

plans at this time to hire GridFlorida LLC employees until after the board 

of directors of GF Inc. has been selected. It is expected that employees of 

the three companies will continue to undertake such activities if and when 

the project restarts. 

How was GridFlorida LLC initially funded? 

GridFlorida LLC was initially funded with $3 million, the proceeds of three 

separate $1 million loans made by each of the companies. 

How is the $3 million being used? 

6 
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All expenditure decisions require the unanimous vote of the board of 

managers. That requirement helps ensure that only prudent expenditures 

are made. GridFlorida LLC has drawn on its initial funding to hire a 

consultant to prepare a business plan or blueprint, as discussed later in 

my testimony, and to hire an executive search firm to propose members of 

the board of directors of GF Inc. to the FERC-approved Board Selection 

Committee. Funds have also been expended to pay for insurance. The 

total amount expended through June 2001 is less than $1 million. 

Has GridFlorida considered obtaining additional funding? 

Yes. Prior to work on GridFlorida being suspended in May of this year, we 

had planned to obtain additional funding for GridFlorida LLC by entering 

into a loan arrangement with a commercial lender, guaranteed by the 

three companies. 

How would this additional funding be used? 

RTO development activities were suspended prior to development of a 

budget addressing the uses of additional funding. As a general matter, 

however, if the project is restarted, additional funding will be needed to 

pay additional consultant fees, the costs of other administrative and 

development activities, and repayment of the $3 million loaned to 

GridFlorida LLC by FPC, FPL and TECO. 

7 
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Why did the GridFlorida Companies extend the loans and propose 

extending guarantees as described above? 

Under FERC Order No. 2000, the GridFlorida Companies were the only 

peninsular Florida parties with RTO obligations. Consequently, the 

GridFlorida Companies were the only parties with a need to fund the 

activities necessary for the development of GridFlorida. Without such 

initial funding, the GridFlorida project could not have been started, and the 

three companies could not have made a good faith effort to comply with 

Order No. 2000. 

Have the GridFlorida Companies incurred start up costs separate 

and apart from the costs associated with funding GridFlorida LLC? 

Yes, the three companies already have incurred significant costs in order 

to comply with Order No. 2000. Through the end of May 2001, the three 

companies collectively have incurred over $ 9 million in start up costs. 

What types of costs have the GridFlorida Companies considered to 

be start up costs? 

Exhibit No. - (HIS-I) to my direct testimony is a letter agreement 

executed by the three companies in which the categories of start up costs 

are defined. 

Does GridFlorida have an agreement to reimburse FPC, FPL and 

TECO for their start up costs? 

8 
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Yes. The GridFlorida Companies entered into a Start Up Cost 

Reimbursement Agreement with GridFlorida LLC which provides that after 

commercial operation GridFlorida will repay the start up costs incurred by 

the companies, subject to FERC approval. A copy of this agreement is 

contained GridFlorida Companies’ Witness Naeve Exhibit No. - (CMN- 

What will happen to GridFlorida LLC after GridFlorida becomes 

operational? 

GridFlorida LLC will continue to exist as the limited liability company that 

owns and operates transmission facilities, under the management of GF, 

Inc. FPC will exit the LLC on the date that GridFlorida achieves 

commercial operation. FPL and TECO will be members of GridFlorida 

LLC going forward by virtue of their anticipated contributions of 

transmission assets to GridFlorida LLC in exchange for member interests 

in the LLC. 

SELECTION OF CONSULTANT 

Q. How did GridFlorida go about selecting a consultant to assist with 

start up activities? 

On January 24, 2001 GridFlorida LLC issued a Request for Information 

Regarding Program Management Services and Business Systems (“RFI”). 

The RFI, a copy of which is attached to my testimony as Exhibit No. - 

(HIS-2), sought proposals on all key business functions to be established 

A. 

9 
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by GridFlorida. GridFlorida considered proposals made by Cap Gemini 

Ernst & Young, R. J. Rudden Associates, Accenture, 

PriceWaterhouseCoopers and Arthur Anderson. A presentation of the 

evaluation of these five proposals is attached to my testimony as Exhibit 

No. - (HIS-3). Accenture was awarded the contract on April qth, 2001. 

What factors led GridFlorida LLC to choose Accenture? 

In addition to submitting the lowest cost proposal received in connection 

with the RFI, Accenture has substantial experience in managing similar 

RTO projects, including experience with GridSouth, the Electric Reliability 

Council of Texas, IS0  New England, PJM, and the Southwest Power 

Pool. In addition, the project team has direct experience with the systems 

needed to implement and operate GridFlorida. Accenture’s experience is 

more fully described in the direct testimony of GridFlorida Companies’ 

Witness Bradford L. Holcombe. 

What is the scope of the Accenture engagement? 

Accenture was hired to develop a “Business Blueprint’’ for GridFlorida. 

The blueprint, which has been completed, contains a description of the 

organization model for GridFlorida, the capabilities that GridFlorida will 

need, an operating model, and identification of necessary computer 

applications. The Business Blueprint also contains preliminary budget 

numbers for the start up costs associated with GridFlorida as well as a 

preliminary operating budget for the first year of operation. The Business 

10 
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Blueprint is discussed in the direct testimony of Mr. Holcombe and is 

included in his Exhibit No. __ (BLH-1). 

Has GridFlorida engaged Accenture or another consultant to 

implement the Business Blueprint? 

No. GridFlorida has not entered into any consulting contracts other than 

the initial contract with Accenture. If the project moves forward at a later 

date, we will evaluate whether Accenture or another consultant is in the 

best position to assist GridFlorida LLC in implementing the Business 

B I ueprin t. 

In addition to Accenture, what other resources have been utilized to 

undertake GridFlorida LLC start up activities? 

Each of the three companies have devoted in house resources to initial 

GridFlorida LLC start up activities, and if the project moves forward, we 

intend to continue this practice. Combining in house utility expertise with 

outside consulting support is the most cost effective approach to 

implementing the many business functions that need to be put in place to 

render GridFlorida operational. 

ONGOING PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Q. What is the schedule for proceeding with implementation of 

Grid F I o ri d a? 

11 
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Currently all project development efforts have been suspended. If and 

when the project is restarted, it is anticipated that it will take at least nine 

months for GridFlorida to become operational on a limited basis. 

Do you expect that GridFlorida will be fully operational nine months 

after start up activities recommence? 

No, not fully operational. Due to the complexity and extensive time 

required to implement all of the functions to be performed by GridFlorida, it 

likely will not be possible to achieve full operation in a nine month time 

frame. However, I do expect GridFlorida to be operational nine months 

after restart with a reduced scope. Development activities would then 

continue to implement the full functions planned for GridFlorida as 

contained in the FERC approved Open Access Transmission Tariff. The 

first stage of operation is referred to as “Release 1 ,” while the final, fully- 

operational stage is referred to as the “End State.” During Release I 

operation, services related to congestion management, energy imbalance, 

and other ancillary services likely will be simplified while development 

continues on establishing the market-based functions in the End State for 

these services, along with a necessarily more complex attendant billing 

system. 

When do you anticipate restarting the development of GridFlorida? 

GridFlorida development activities were suspended in May of this year to 

allow this Commission to complete its review of the prudence of the 

12 
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GridFlorida Companies’ participation in GridFlorida. In order to suspend 

the activities in an orderly manner, work on the Accenture Business 

Blueprint was completed and the compliance filings required by FERC 

were submitted. However, all other development activities have ceased. 

Until this Commission has made a definitive ruling on the prudence of the 

GridFlorida Companies’ participation in GridFlorida, the three companies 

have decided not to make expenditures that might be called into question 

by this Commission at a later date. Consequently, no final decision is 

expected to be made to proceed with the development of GridFlorida 

unless or until this Commission has made such a definitive ruling and the 

recovery of the costs prudently incurred in connection with the GridFlorida 

Companies’ development of and participation in GridFlorida is assured. 

PROJECT 

Q. 

A. 

COSTS 

What steps have been taken to implement GridFlorida in the most 

cost-effective manner possible? 

GridFlorida LLC approaches all decisions and tasks with the intent to 

minimize costs to the greatest extent possible. Use of existing company 

expertise and facilities is one of the key ways in which costs are being 

managed. As I discussed earlier, a mix of in house expertise and outside 

consulting resources has been used to implement GridFlorida’s many 

complex and interrelated business functions. We have identified areas 

where we may look to outsource certain functions rather than to perform 

13 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

such functions in house after GridFlorida becomes operational. These 

issues are discussed in the testimony of Mr. Holcombe. 

What plans does GridFlorida LLC have for utilizing the facilities of 

the three companies? 

To minimize costs and facilitate the implementation of GridFlorida on a 

timely basis, we have examined using existing facilities wherever possible. 

For example, we have determined that GridFlorida can save time and 

money by utilizing certain FPL control center facilities, computer systems 

and telecommunication systems. 

What are the projected start up and operating costs for GridFlorida? 

The projected start up and operating costs of GridFlorida are discussed in 

Mr. Holcombe’s testimony. The projected costs of implementing the End 

State are $1 50 million. Of this amount, $1 36 million is incremental above 

costs already being incurred by the GridFlorida Companies. The costs of 

implementing the project to the Release 1 stage are approximately $ 80 

million. The projected annual operating cost for the first year of operation 

in the End State mode is $182 million. Of this amount, $52 million is 

incremental over and above the operating costs already being expended 

by the GridFlorida Companies. 

Are these ncremental costs reasonable? 

14 
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Yes. In order to comply with FERC’s Order No. 2000 and the FERC 

orders specifically addressing GridFlorida, GridFlorida is required to have 

certain characteristics and perform certain functions. The existing 

systems of FPL, FPC and TECO were not designed to possess all of 

these characteristics and perform all of these functions. Therefore, many 

of GridFlorida’s systems will be new and will replace or overlay existing 

FPL, FPC and TECO systems. The costs resulting from implementing 

these systems are necessary to ensure that GridFlorida will meet its 

requirements. 

Does this conclude your direct testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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MR. FAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We tender the  

v i  tness f o r  cross exami nat ion.  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . Mr . McGl o th l  i n .  

MR. McGLOTHLIN: 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Howe. 

MR. HOWE: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Mr . Twomey . 
MR. TWOMEY: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: S t a f f .  

MR. KEATING: Just a few questions, and I would ask 

I have no questions. 

for j u s t  a l i t t l e  l a t i t u d e  t o  go outside the  scope o f  Mr. 

Southwick's testimony here. We have a few questions t h a t  we 

started t o  address w i t h  Mr. Hoecker and he d i d  not have the  

speci f ic  knowledge, i t  i s  re la ted  t o  F l o r i d a  Power Corporation. 

4nd I have spoken t o  F lo r ida  Power Corporat ion's counsel, and I 

i e l i e v e  they are okay w i t h  t h i s  l i n e  o f  questions. O f  course 

they may jump i n  a t  any t i m e  and change t h e i r  mind, but I would 

l i k e  t o  go forward w i t h  those now. I t ' s  j u s t  a few questions. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. KEATING: 

Q Mr. Southwick, a r e  you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  F lor ida Power's 

2 f fo r t s  i n  the e a r l y  1990s t o  b u i l d  a t h i r d  500 kV transmission 

l i n e  between F lo r ida  and Alabama or  between F lo r ida  and another 

s ta te?  

A I am somewhat f a m i l i a r  w i t h  it. I d i d  not work on 
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t h a t  project. 
Zompany a t  t h a t  time. 

I was not  directly involved, bu t  I was w i t h  the 

Q From your recollection, t h a t  line would have gone 
from Alabama t o  roughly Central Florida? 

A I believe t h a t  i s  correct. 
Q Based on your recollection, how would the costs of 

that line have affected Florida Power Corporation's 
transmission rate base? 

A I d o n ' t  recall any numbers a t  a l l ,  but I recall t h a t  
dhen the project f i n a l l y  came t o  a conclusion t h a t  the primary 
reason, and i t  was probably multiples, I would imagine, there 
usually are, but  the primary reason was the way t h a t  the costs 
had t o  be assigned was such t h a t  i t  would not be cost-effective 
a t  a l l  for the Florida Power ratepayers. And based on t h a t ,  
the project ultimately died. 

Q T h a t  was the effect on the Florida Power Corporation 
retai 1 ratepayers? 

A Yes. 
Q Do you recall w h a t  the alternative was t o  b u i l d i n g  

t h a t  1 ine? 
A Well, t h a t  line was - - I never thought of i t  directly 

i n  the sense of an alternative. I t  wasn't like we have t o  
b u i l d  this line or do something else. The line would have been 
there t o  increase the import capabi 1 i t y  and export capabi 1 i t y  

from Florida t o  the rest o f  the country. And as a result - - or 
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is i t  resulted the line never got  b u i l t .  

ilternative, per se. 
generati on woul d have been bought and brought in to  F1 orida 
iecause t h a t  line was there. And i n  lieu of generation having  

ieen b u i l t  i n  Florida, the line was not b u i l t ,  generation has 
ieen b u i l t ,  and tha t ' s  the way i t  has turned ou t .  

Q 

I d o n ' t  know t h a t  any 

I f  the line had been b u i l t  and maybe more 

You indicated from your recollection t h a t  the main 

iroblem, one o f  the main problems w i t h  t h a t  line was the effect 
if  the pricing on Florida Power's retail ratepayers? 

A T h a t  i s  my recollection, yes. 

Q And was t h a t  pricing t h a t  would have been approved by 

-ERC or  required by FERC? 

A Yes, I believe t h a t  was the case. 

Q Would you agree t h a t  a t  least since t h a t  proposal was 

nade t h a t  the focus i n  Florida has been t o  b u i l d  additional gas 
sipelines t o  fuel in-state load rather t h a n  bu i ld ing  add i t iona l  

interstate transmission 1 ines? 
A Well, t h a t  i s  w h a t  has turned o u t .  I d o n ' t  know t h a t  

the gas developed directly as a result of t h a t  line not being 
b u i l t ,  bu t  t h a t ,  i n  f a c t ,  has happened since t h a t  time. 

Q 

A No, I d o n ' t  t h i n k  so, not i n  the b i g  scheme of 

Do you believe t h a t  an RTO would change t h a t  focus? 

things. The RTO should not b u i l d  new faci l i t ies  unless they 
are cost justified. And i f  they are cost justif ied,  they 
should be built .  And t h a t  i s  basically the same mode t h a t  we 
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operate i n  today. 

Q Do you have any opinion on whether Florida should 
rely more on long distance transmission rather t h a n  the current 
course of power p l a n t  construction? 

A As a general philosophy, no. I t h i n k  you have t o  
look a t  the situation as i t  presents i tself  and go w i t h  w h a t  
appears t o  be the lowest cost for the state. I can say this, 
i t  i s  very expensive t o  b u i l d  a major transmission line from 
Central Florida i n t o  South Alabama. 

Q In the absence of authority for certain types of 

merchant plants t o  be b u i l t ,  would you expect GridFlorida t o  
enhance generation competition i n  Florida? 

MR. FAMA: Could we have a reference t o  the testimony 
on t h a t  one, t h a t  might be a l i t t l e  further afield t h a n  w h a t  we 
t a l  ked about earl ier .  

MR. KEATING: I will  withdraw the question. That’s 
a l l  the questions I have. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Commissioners? The way t h a t  

GridFlorida i s  going t o  essentially start-up i s  through this 

interim process. What will  be the hand-off  procedures from the 
interim t o  the f u l l  or f i n a l  LLC? 

THE WITNESS: The exact procedures? 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: No, no, i n  general. 
THE WITNESS: When the f i n a l  FERC approvals are a l l  

i n  hand, and t h a t  was mentioned earlier, I believe, by the 
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Dther two applicants, they have t h e i r  d ives t ing  contracts ye t  

t o  take care o f ,  and the outstanding items a t  FERC are a l l  

resolved and the operation i s  - -  t h a t  Gr idFlor ida i s  t o  our 

sa t i s fac t i on  ready and able t o  take over the  operation o f  the 

g r id ,  and a t  t h a t  po in t  i n  time there w i l l  be - -  as i t  was 

described t o  me, i t ' s  l i k e  a c los ing  on a house. 

There i s  going t o  be a whole stack o f  papers t h a t  

w i l l  have t o  be signed by a l o t  o f  people, and we w i l l  a l l  s i t  

down around a tab le  one day and we w i l l  s ign those papers. It 

i s  considered t h a t  they are signed simultaneously. And a t  the  

end o f  t h a t  procedure Gr idFlor ida w i l l  be i n  charge. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: This question i s  probably more - -  

the next one should have been more accurately posed t o  the 

panel, but  I w i l l  g ive you a shot. It occurs t o  me - -  l e t  me 

step back. One o f  the concerns t h a t  had been ra ised has t o  do 

w i th  independence w i t h  regard t o  FRCC. And as I understand i t , 

because FRCC w i l l  take i t s  marching orders from the operating 

companies, i s t h a t  correct? 

THE WITNESS: I ' m  sorry.  I f  I heard you co r rec t l y ,  

d i d  you say the FRCC w i l l  take i t s  marching orders from who? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Within GridFlor ida,  FRCC w i l l  take 

i t s  marching - - I c a n ' t  remember i f  i t  was the GF company or  

from the LLC. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. No, s i r .  The FRCC i s  a t o t a l l y  

separate organization from GridFlor ida.  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 

25 

683 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Understood. But i t  i s  going t o  be 

Zontracted - - i t  i s  going t o  have a cont ract  w i t h  GridFlor ida,  

md I wasn't c lear  on who - - I c a n ' t  remember who the 

2ontracting au tho r i t y  comes from. 

-LC or  from the other organization. 

j e t  i t  i n  f r o n t  o f  me rea l  quick. Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  the  

3rcumstance t h a t  I ' m  speaking o f?  

I f  i t  was coming from the 

I apologize, l e t  me j u s t  

THE WITNESS: It must be i n  the  secu r i t y  coordinator 

"ealm. The way t h a t  w i l l  work, the FRCC, the F lo r ida  Regional 

X e l i a b i l i t y  Council, which i s  a subset o f  NERC, so t o  speak, 

d i l l  set  the r e l i a b i l i t y  standards f o r  the  F lo r ida  region, and 

they w i l l  monitor the compliance w i t h  those standards f o r  

;r idFlorida, who w i l l  be an operating transmission u t i l i t y  p lus 

my other u t i l i t i e s  i n  F lo r ida  t h a t  do not  j o i n  GridFlor ida,  i f  

my, they w i l l  a lso be under the FRCC. So the FRCC w i l l  

naintain t h a t  r o l e  t o  set  standards and monitor compliance w i t h  

those standards. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. I ' m  sorry.  I apologize, 

3ecause I asked the question very i n a r t f u l l y .  

step back and ask i t  i n  a more generic way. One o f  the 

concerns, as I understood i t , was t h a t  independence w i th  regard 

t o  FRC once i t  goes under contract t o  Gr idFlor ida was a 

concern. And i t  had t o  do w i th  who gave i t  i t s  marching orders 

as I understood it. It doesn't  sound f a m i l i a r ?  

THE WITNESS: Not exact ly.  

Let me k ind  o f  
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. S t r i k e  the question, then. 

1 w i l l  have t o  f i n d  i t  and maybe ask i t  t o  one o f  the other 

vitnesses. Thank you. Red 

MR. FAMA: No red 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : 

MR. FAMA: We wou 

I x h i  b i  t 17. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : 

r e c t .  

r e c t .  

Exh ib i ts .  

d move f o r  the  admission o f  

Without ob ject ion,  show Exh ib i t  17 

i s  admitted. Thank you, Mr. Southwick. Next witness. 

(Exh ib i t  17 admitted i n t o  the  record.) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Next witness. 

MR. CHILDS: I bel ieve Ms. Dubin. 

Commissioners, Ms. Dubi n w i  11 be presenting FPL' s 

testimony on the recovery methodology. And there has been some 

3 i  scussi on most recent1 y about t h i  s methodology, t h i  s 

testimony, and the pos i t i on  o f  i t  i n  t h i s  docket. And I want 

t o  make a couple o f  comments about t h a t  before we begin. 

F1 or ida Power and L igh t  continues t o  be concerned 

about recovery o f  costs associated w i t h  implementing 

GridFlorida and recovering t h a t  through a capacity clause or  

something l i k e  a capacity clause. We are concerned about the  

po ten t ia l  o f  successive base r a t e  proceedings i n  the fu tu re  o r  

t h a t  because o f  the s t ruc tu re  o f  costs and costs associated 

w i th  s ta r t -up ,  as we1 1 ,  t h a t  costs incurred may not be 

recoverable. 
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Therefore, I want t o  t r y  t o  c ar i fy  or  address, 

again, because we put i t  i n  our i n i t i a l  p e t i t i o n ,  bu t  I want 

you t o  please understand the pos i t i on  t h a t  we are asking you t o  

see i s  as fo l lows: 

the evidence and your evaluat ion o f  Gr idFlor ida t h a t  we are 

prudent i n  s t ruc tu r ing  GridFlor ida as i t  i s  proposed t o  be 

structured and t h a t  we are prudent i n  p a r t i c i p a t i n g  i n  i t , then 

FPL i s  prepared t o  go forward i f  the capaci ty cost  recovery 

methodology i s  approved, as w e l l .  And by going forward we mean 

t o  begin t o  complete the tasks t o  s t a r t  the operation o f  

GridFlorida, and t o  do t h a t  wh i le  we also continue t o  

pa r t i c i pa te  i n  the  development o f  the southeast RTO. 

I n  t h i s  proceeding i f  you conclude a f t e r  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Help me understand, Mr. Chi lds,  

could you - - i s  t h i s  a request o f  ore tenus, o r  i s  i t  simply a 

pre l iminary review o f  Ms. Dubin's pos i t ion? 

MR. CHILDS: No, i t  i s  a review o f  FPL's pos i t i on ,  

Mr. Chairman. E a r l i e r  on I t h i n k  there was some comments about 

what FPL's pos i t i on  was and what the pos i t i on  o f  the  pa r t i es  

were, and whether i t  was expressed i n  Issue 11 or  not ,  and what 

the pos i t i on  was on recovery. And I t h i n k  Commissioner Palecki 

had a concern which he voiced about the Commission considering 

doing anything w i t h  the presentation o f  the request f o r  

consideration o f  recovery through the capacity clause. And so 

when we are presenting t h i s  testimony, I ' m  t ry ing  t o  make sure 

tha t  i t  i s  - -  t h a t  we are communicating as t o  what we are 
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3sking you t o  do. We simply t h i n k  t h a t  we are a t  the p o i n t  o f  

t r y i n g  t o  make sure t h a t  when you consider t h i s  o r  decide how 

to  consider i t , t h a t  you understand what our p o s i t i o n  i s ,  and 

I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  present t h a t  t o  you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: As I understood i t , f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  

there i s  a question o f  whether o r  not  the  methodology f o r  

recovery i s  even an issue, and I assume t h a t  there w i l l  be 

b r i e f s  t ime devoted t o  t h a t .  But as t o  any p a r t i c u l a r  request 

f o r  a decis ion on t h a t  or remedy on t h a t ,  I ' m  not  o f  the  

opinion t h a t  i s  w i t h i n  the scope o f  t h i s  proceeding. 

MR. CHILDS: Well, and t h a t ' s  what I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  

address. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I understand. 

MR. CHILDS: And i t  may be t h a t  t h a t  i s  what you 

decide, and I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  expla in  t o  you our pos i t i on  and our 

view o f  the  circumstances or  the  r e s u l t s  t h a t  may f low from 

t h a t .  We bel ieve t h a t  we were d i rec ted  t o  f i l e  a p e t i t i o n  t o  

ask the Commission and t o  t e l l  the  Commission what r e l i e f  we 

needed i n  order t o  go forward, and we d id .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And you bel ieve t h a t  your 

appl icat ion stated such a request? 

MR. CHILDS: I do. But I t h i n k  i t  may help as we are 

addressing p a r t i c u l a r l y  the s i t u a t i o n  o f  the consideration o f  

the southeast RTO and the time c e r t a i n  f o r  commitment w i th  

GridFlor ida,  e t  cetera, t h a t  I t r y  t o  expla in  our pos i t i on  and 
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]ut i t  i n  context. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Maybe we c l a r i f y  i t  even more. 

- e t ' s  pu t  together a hypothet ica l ,  Mr. Childs. 

that  we conclude t h i s  hearing, we have a record, we have a 

flecommendation, we make a decis ion t h a t  Gr idFlor ida i s  a 

xudent  undertaking, i t  has been handled i n  an appropriate 

nanner, i t  appears t h a t  i t  i s  i n  the  pub l i c  i n t e r e s t  f o r  the 

c i t i zens  o f  F lor ida.  That i s  j u s t  an assumption. 

no decis ion whatsoever on cost-recovery, then i t  would be 

F lor ida Power and L i g h t ' s  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  t h a t  would not be 

s u f f i c i e n t  t o  go forward w i t h  development o f  Gr idFlor ida? 

L e t ' s  assume 

But there i s  

MR. CHILDS: That i s  correct .  And t h a t  i f  t h a t  i s  

the Commission decides i s  the decision, i f  t h a t  i s  what 

appropriate - - 

COMMISSIONER DEASON 

o r  down, i t  i s  not addressed, 

MR. CHILDS: We w i l  

No decision on cost recovery up 

then t h a t  i s  no t  s u f f i c i e n t ?  

not be able t o  go forward u n t i l  

the matter i s  addressed and we f i n d  out how i t  i s  addressed. 

And t h a t  i n  addi t ion I wanted t o  say t h a t  i f  i t  i s  addressed 

and the  question was posed about how t h a t  f i t  w i t h  the t ime 

cer ta in ,  t h a t  i f  the - -  we are prepared i f  i t  i s  addressed, i f  

you f i n d  t h a t  i t  i s  prudent and you address the  cost-recovery, 

we are prepared t o  proceed w i t h  the steps necessary t o  begin 

operation o f  GridFlorida by time ce r ta in  subject t o  whether 

t h a t  t ime i s  doable and r e a l i s t i c .  I f  the FERC has not  
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Zompleted the process o f  estab l ish ing an RTO f o r  the  southeast 

J.S. ,  we w i l l  take steps t o  put GridFlor ida i n  operation under 

those c i  rcumstances. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Childs, I know you are 

t r y i n g  t o  address the questions I asked. 

MR. CHILDS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: It seems t o  me, though, t h a t  

s i m i l a r  t o  a determination o f  need on generation where the  

:ommission might f i n d  t h a t  there i s  a need, there  i s n ' t  a cost 

recovery issue i n  t h a t  example. 

3etween t h a t  and the circumstance we are i n ,  number one. 

lumber two, you are q u i t  capable o f  i d e n t i f y i n g  a cost-recovery 

issue and br ing ing  t h a t  t o  the prehearing o f f i c e r .  I see i t  as 

3 not ice  problem now. 

to  cross-examine, present testimony, or b r i e f  the  issue o f  cost 

recovery a t  t h i s  po in t .  

your comments. 

sense tha t ,  "We1 1 , Commissioners, i f  you don ' t  approve 

:r idFlorida, we j u s t  wouldn' t  go forward." You need us more 

than we need you a t  t h i s  po in t ,  so I don ' t  know what - -  

I d o n ' t  see the  d i f fe rence 

I t ' s  not  l i k e  the p a r t i e s  are prepared 

I don ' t  r e a l l y  know what t o  do w i t h  

I t ' s  almost l i k e  a th rea t  I use loose ly  i n  the 

MR. CHILDS: It i s  c e r t a i n l y  not,  and i t  i s  not 

intended as a t h rea t  a t  a1 1.  But i t  i s  - - and, Commissioner, 

as t o  the no t ice  problem, I t h i n k  tha t  i s  one o f  t he  reasons 

tha t  I wanted t o  make sure t h a t  i t  was understood. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: But i t  c a n ' t  be remedied now. 
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MR. CHILDS: Well, I t h i n k  i t  can be. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: How? 

MR. CHILDS: Because as t o  the  no t i ce  problem, you 

know, as t o  the suggestion about no t i ce  and not  being prepared, 

you know, I want t o  comment t h a t  we a l l  met when we were t r y i n g  

to  work out these issues. We a l l  met. A l l  the pa r t i es  met 

tha t  were pa r t i es  a t  t h a t  t ime. We had several meetings before 

the prehearing o f f i c e r  and we had one meeting dur ing t h a t  among 

wrse lves  t o  t r y  t o  work out issues. This was an issue. This 

das an issue i n  our i n i t i a l  pleading. 

discussed i t  and a l l  - -  most a l l  p a r t i e s  f i l e d  independent 

Dleadings as t o  what they thought issues should be, we ended up 

d i t h  the order t h a t  I mentioned before, which sa id t h i s  

statement o f  issues, which as I r e c a l l  i s  p r i n c i p a l l y  the 

s t a f f ' s  issues, t h i s  statement instead o f  our issues i s  broad 

snough f o r  you t o  b r i n g  i n  your po in ts  and the p o s i t i o n  - -  

It was - -  a f t e r  we 

COMMISSIONER JABER: L e t ' s  go back t o  my f i r s t  

question. 

need where we f i n d  t h a t  there i s  a need, but  we d o n ' t  address 

the cost-recovery issue? Why i s n ' t  a dec is ion on prudence 

snough f o r  you t o  come back and say - -  t o  come back and say, 

Zommissioners, you found t h i s  t o  be prudent so, o f  course, you 

have t o  al low cost recovery f o r  it? 

How would t h i s  be d i f f e r e n t  than a determination o f  

MR. CHILDS: Well, I t h i n k  there  are two d i f ferences.  

h e  i s  t h a t  what I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  expla in  i s  t h a t  the predicate 
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'or our request was t o  dentify for the Commission w h a t  we 

ieeded t o  have i n  order t o  go forward. So unlike, I t h i n k ,  a 
ietition for determination of need where we have identified a 
ieed and are trying t o  f i l l  i t ,  we are trying t o  identify for 

jou t h a t  this i s  an alternative t h a t  we believe i s  appropriate. 
j u t  i t  i s  appropriate i f  there i s  a way and a vehicle for you 

:o understand and address whether i t  i s  prudent, and for you t o  
jetermi ne whether under those ci rcumstances i t  i s appropriate 
for FPL t o  incur significant costs and have a way t o  recover 
those. 

For instance, you know, we have got  some 23 t o  $25 

n i l l ion  i n  start-up costs, which i f  GridFlorida doesn't work 
jown the road we are concerned about w h a t  do we do w i t h  t h a t  
md we want  you t o  know that. 
t h a t  we are being asked t o  - -  we are t o l d ,  I t h i n k ,  i n  your 
wder a comment t o  the effect t h a t  any decision you make i n  

'base I w i l l  not affect the decision t h a t  you may make i n  Phase 
11. And so t h a t  creates some uncertainty, as well on our part 
as t o  whether a determination i s  sufficient. 

I t h i n k ,  another difference i s  

We are a1 so concerned before we commit t o  proceeding 
d i t h  the development and implementation of GridFlorida t h a t  as 
He see the cost incurrence and we see the relationship t h a t  you 

know t h a t  t h a t  i s  what we are looking for because we do n o t  
want t o  see a situation of successive rate cases t h a t  probably 
are going t o  produce inadequate recovery or overrecovery as 
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101 a t i  1 i t y  o f  costs i s experienced. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Refresh my reco l l ec t i on ,  you 

vanted a separate proceeding on the  RTO issues, r i g h t ?  

MR. CHILDS: We asked f o r  a - -  I ' m  not  sure when you 

say separate - -  
COMMISSIONER JABER: D i d n ' t  you want the generic 

separate RTO proceeding outside o f  the  r a t e  case t rack?  

MR. CHILDS: We asked f o r  - -  yes, we asked f o r  - -  we 

2sked t o  address a f t e r  the recommendation had been made about 

dhether the  ac t ion  o f  the companies was prudent i n  pursuing 

;r idFlorida and t h a t  because o f  t h a t  those costs should be 

2xamined. 

nean t h a t  we were i n  the midst o f  p o t e n t i a l l y  i n c u r r i n g  

substantial costs on ly  t o  have an answer l a t e r  on. 

We were i n  the midst o f  going forward, which would 

We explained t o  the Commission t h a t  we had not 

committed t o  go forward. It was suggested t h a t  we had 

committed and, therefore,  the decision, un l i ke  what you might 

have i n  a determination o f  need, i t  was suggested t h a t  we had 

already committed when we hadn' t .  And we sa id under the 

circumstances when i t  i s  being presented t o  you t h a t  our 

actions are imprudent, we t h i n k  i t  i s  most prudent t o  come t o  

you and say, now, what do you want us t o  do here. 

We were i n  the process o f  f i l i n g  a separate recovery, 

but  when t h i s  recommendation came forward, we d i d  want t o  have 

tha t  addressed inc lud ing addressing the r i s k  o f  whether the 
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zosts a c t u a l l y  incurred were going t o  be recovered. 

I guess I need some COMMISSIONER DEASON: 

A a r i f i c a t i o n .  You said t h a t  you were i n  the process o f  f i l i n g  

for  separate recovery, what do you mean by tha t?  

MR. CHILDS: We were i n  the  process o f  presenting a 

f i l i n g  f o r  recovery, f o r  present ing GridFlor ida and asking f o r  

recovery o f  the  costs, saying here i s  what i t  i s ,  and we want 

to  ask you t o  approve i t  and t o  f i n d  t h a t  i t  i s  appropriate and 

t e l l  us t h a t  we can recover the  costs. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So you were i n  the  process o f  

doing t h a t  before t h i s  i nves t i ga t i on  was opened? 

MR. CHILDS: Well, I was, I t h i n k ,  yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Well, t h a t  i s  some 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n ,  because I was going t o  ask you the question. It 

appeared t h a t  Gr idFlor ida was wel l  underway, i t  had gotten FERC 

approval , a t  l eas t  enough t o  go ahead and es tab l i sh  an i n i t i a l  

organization o f  a board o f  d i rec to rs  and things o f  t h a t  nature, 

and t h a t  you were doing t h a t  wi thout any type o f  cost recovery 

mechanism being endorsed by t h i s  Commission. 

MR. CHILDS: Well, i t  hadn' t  been. I was i n  the  

process and had draf ted, bu t  we d i d n ' t  qu i te  get there.  And 

now we are here, and our view was t h a t  the issue has been 

ra ised i n  t h i s  separate forum, i t  has been ra ised the way i t  

has been raised, l e t ' s  t r y  t o  j o i n  on t h a t  issue and go forward 

and t r y  t o  address the prudence o f  the act ion and answer the  
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questions about what we are going t o  do and make sure t h a t  i t  

i s  considered t o  be appropriate, and i f  not,  we won' t  pursue 

it. But i f  i t  i s ,  we are t r y i n g  t o  make you understand from 

our perspective i s  t h a t  there i s  a r i s k .  We bel ieve t h a t  we 

took the  r i g h t  step, but  we also bel ieve t h a t  we ought no t  t o  

have t h i s  substant ia l  doubt o f  s i g n i f i c a n t  cost  expenditures 

d i t h  no avenue i n  s igh t  y e t  f o r  recovery. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So even i f  we had not opened 

t h i s  inves t iga t ion  you would have f i l e d  t h a t  w i t h  t h i s  

Commission, and I assume you would have gone t o  FERC and had 

said t h a t  before we can continue t o  expend funds we need a 

recovery mechanism endorsement from the F lo r i da  Pub1 i c  Service 

Commi ss i  on. 

MR. CHILDS: I d o n ' t  know what - -  my ins t ruc t i ons  

te re  t o  prepare a f i l i n g ,  and I had done t h a t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: One fu r the r  question. I s  the 

issue the  mechanism or  i s  the  issue cost recovery? And the  

d i s t i n c t i o n  I make i s  t h a t  a t  leas t  i t  has been presented t h a t  

the costs t h a t  are incurred by GridFlorida on behal f  of - -  and 

your c l i e n t ,  i n  the case o f  your c l i e n t ,  F l o r i d a  Power and 

L igh t  r e t a i l  operations, t h a t  we have no choice bu t  t o  pass 

those costs through such t h a t  you recover the  costs. 

i t ' s  a question o f  whether i t  i s  through a base r a t e  

proceeding, o r  through some type o f  recovery c l  ause, o r  maybe 

some combination o f  the two. 

I guess 

I s  the issue the  mechanism or  i s  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 
5 

6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 

22 
23 

24 

25 

694 

the question whether you w i l l  receive cost recovery? 

MR. CHILDS: The issue i s  the  mechanism. Because, 

you know, what we have proposed i s  t o  fo l l ow  the  procedure t h a t  

i s  cu r ren t l y  f o l  1 owed f o r  capacity cost recovery where c e r t a i n  

costs are recovered i n  base rates f o r  capaci ty,  and those costs 

tha t  are not  re f l ec ted  i n  base rates there i s  an adjustment 

clause. And our concern was t o  be able t o  present those costs, 

there is  a way t o  monitor those costs, you can see what they 

are. We w i l l  f i l e  the forms and repor t  on them. 

But the mechanism i s  a lso important because o f  the  

po ten t ia l  v o l a t i l i t y  o f  costs so t h a t  base r a t e  recovery may 

simply be inadequate. And we wanted t o  present t h a t  case t o  

you through a t  l eas t  Ms. Dubin t o  s t a r t  t h a t  process t o  expla in  

t h a t  there i s  some exposure there which makes us conclude t h a t  

t h a t  mechanism i s  the appropriate one t o  use and i t  i s  one l i k e  

you have used before. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: It seems l i k e  we should cross 

t h a t  br idge when we come t o  it. Assuming the  Commission f i nds  

t h a t  the  RTO i s  prudent, we could ask our s t a f f  t o  prepare a 

separate recommendation on what cost recovery mechani sm i s 

appropriate. I t h i n k  t h a t  might remedy some o f  the no t i c ing  

concerns. But, Mr. Childs, f o r  whatever i t  i s  worth t o  you, 

there was never a doubt i n  my mind t h a t  i f  we found any s o r t  o f  

RTO prudent t h a t  FPL would expect t h a t  the  costs be recovered 

through the customers. I never doubted t h a t  f o r  a minute. The 
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question i n  my mind was ge t t i ng  there a f t e r  i t  was determined 

rJhat k ind  o f  RTO would be appropriate f o r  the  s ta te .  

MR. CHILDS: Well, the mechanism, as Commissioner 

leason asked the question i s  t h a t  there i s  - -  and we are t r y i n g  

t o  make a d i s t i n c t i o n  between inc lud ing  the costs i n  the 

u t i l i t y ' s  costs o f  service or cost o f  service and having a 

nechanism t o  r e f l e c t  those costs. You know, t h a t  i s  one reason 

tha t  the capacity clause was there using t h a t  as an example. 

And i t ' s  one reason t h a t  the fue l  clause i s  there i s  t h a t  

sometimes because o f  v o l a t i l i t y  o f  costs, changing l eve l  o f  

costs, the clause works and base rates doesn't  work very we l l .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: A ren ' t  s t a r t - u p  costs f i x e d  

costs? 

MR. CHILDS: Pardon? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: A ren ' t  s t a r t - u p  costs f i x e d  

costs? 

MR. CHILDS: Well, s t a r t - u p  costs are, bu t  i t  puts  us 

i n  a s i t ua t i on  i n  terms o f  s t a r t - u p  costs i s  t h a t  i f  you have 

not  approved cost recovery o f  i ncu r r i ng  those costs, i f  we go 

forward only t o  address l a t e r  whether we recover. 

order i t  said t h a t  any decis ion i n  Phase I can be addressed or 
words t o  t h a t  e f f e c t  i n  Phase 11, which created doubt, a t  l e a s t  

i n  my mind, as t o  whether t h a t  issue could be raised. 

I n  your 

MR. KEATING: Commissioners - - 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Just  a second. Your p o s i t i o n  here 
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i s  t h a t  t h i s  whole process began because you are requi red t o  do 

it, r i g h t ?  

MR. CHILDS: What? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Your p o s i t i o n  i s  t h a t  t h i s  whole 

process, t h i s  process o f  development o f  an RTO was begun 

because e s s e n t i a l l y  you were requi red t o  do i t , cor rec t?  

MR. CHILDS: I t h i n k  - -  w e l l ,  I d o n ' t  want t o  miss 

the p o i n t  i n  the  discussion about what i s  vo luntary  o r  what i s  

vo luntary  w i t h  a l o t  o f  pressure, e t  cetera,  b u t  - - 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: No, no. Let  me - - I ' m  so r ry  t o  cu t  

you o f f ,  bu t  I t h i n k  i t  i s  important here because - -  and i t  

goes t o  form. Because i f ,  indeed, you are operat ing under a 

mandate, and I hear your argument now i s  t h a t  there  i s  an 

important cond i t ion  precedent t o  your complying w i t h  t h a t  

mandate, i s  t he  argument you are making now i n  the  proper 

forum? It sounds l i k e  - -  
MR. CHILDS: I t h i n k  so. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: It sounds l i k e  you would have t o  go 

then t o  the  place t h a t  imposed t h a t  requirement on you and say 

there i s  an impossible cond i t ion  here. 

MR. CHILDS: No, I ' m  not  - -  I t h i n k  i t ' s  t he  proper 

forum. Because a l l  I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  convey t o  you i s  t h a t  the  

order d i rec ted  us t o  t e l l  you what we needed i n  order t o  go 

forward. And I ' m  no t ,  you know, I ' m  no t  saying anything other 

than t h a t  i f  we d o n ' t  have t h a t  r u l i n g ,  i f  you are not  
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s a t i s f i e d  w i t h  i t  so t h a t  you fee l  comfortable making t h a t  

r u l i n g ,  we cannot a t  t h i s  po in t  go forward. 

have t o  w a i t  and see whether you are comfortable w i t h  t h a t  

1 a te r .  

We w i l l  simply 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Let  me step back f o r  a moment then 

t o  how we began. I f  I ' m  not  mistaken how t h i s  process began 

i n i t i a l l y  was an inves t iga t ion  t h a t  we i n i t i a t e d .  And i n  the 

context o f  t h a t  invest igat ion,  t he  concern was ra ised t h a t  

c r i t i c a l  issues were pending w i t h  regard t o  the RTO and t h a t  

those issues should be resolved i n  an expedit ious manner i n  

order t o  a l low the companies t o  proceed i n  compliance w i t h  

FERC's order. 

i s  a condi t ion on t h i s  proceeding t o  s a t i s f y  the  t ime l i n e  o f  

t h a t  docket when we i n i t i a t e d  our - - 

I f i n d  myself a t  a loss t o  understand now how i t  

MR. CHILDS: Simply because there had been t h i s  

question t h a t  said - -  and a recommendation t h a t  sa id  you need 

t o  address t h i s ,  you need t o  determine i t  i s  prudent and decide 

whether there i s  going t o  be any cost recovery. Well , i f  you 

are i n  the midst o f  a process o f  committing t o  spend a l o t  o f  

money t o  implement and pursue the  development o f  Gr idFlor ida,  

i t  seemed prudent under the circumstances t o  make sure t h a t  you 

were s a t i s f i e d  t h a t  we were fo l low ing  the r i g h t  course o f  

act ion before we incurred those obl igat ions on ly  t o  be t o l d  

p o t e n t i a l l y  t h a t  you would ra ther  we had done something e lse.  

And so the time l i n e  was t o  t r y  t o  - -  and I thought 
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n terms o f  the t ime l i n e  and the short  t ime as we said we 

:an? go forward, and I t h i n k  we made i t  c lear  we c a n ' t  go 

'orward u n t i l  you have had a chance t o  address it. And we are 

'cry pleased t h a t  you sa id you would address i t  w i t h i n  a t ime 

:ertain.  And t h a t ' s  a l l  we are t r y i n g  t o  do i s  t o  make sure 

:hat you were s a t i s f i e d  w i t h  our presentation, t h a t  we were 

loing the  r i g h t  th ing ,  and t h a t  we were not  spending money on 

in e f f o r t  t h a t  you wished we hadn' t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: L e t ' s  say as a hypothetical we 

iccept t h a t  your f i l i n g  was intended as a p e t i t i o n  t o  seek an 

ic t ion  from us determining what the proper cost recovery 

rehicle should be. Without character iz ing the record thus 

'ar  - -  we l l ,  ac tua l l y  I t h i n k  i t  i s  character iz ing the  record 

:hus f a r .  What I have heard i s  t h a t  there are substant ia l  

dements o f  the overa l l  f i n a l  cost o f  t h i s  proceeding - -  I ' m  

iorry,  o f  t h i s  e n t i t y  t h a t  are as ye t  undetermined and won't be 

letermined u n t i l  some time uncertain i n  the fu tu re .  I am 

iubject t o  be corrected. 

:hen give you the r e l i e f  you have requested? 

I f  t h a t  i s  the case, how wou d we 

MR. CHILDS: Well, I ' m  not  sure t h a t  t h a t  i s  

iecessar i ly  the case. But we are not asking f o r  cost  recovery. 

le are not asking you t o  look a t  these costs and say we are 

joing t o  set  a f ac to r ,  here are the costs o f  F lo r i da  Power and 

. ight ,  we are going t o  authorize rates.  What we are asking you 

;o t e l l  us i s  t h a t  i t  i s  appropriate f o r  the recovery o f  these 
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:osts t o  be through an adjustment clause or  something s i m i l a r  

IS the witness w i l l  ou t l i ne .  It i s  the  method as Commissioner 

leason has mentioned. 

We are  not asking you t o  set  ra tes.  We w i l l  have t o  

:ome back, and I t h ink  the witness explains when we would 

iropose t o  be back depending upon the devel opment o f  

; r idFlor ida.  That a t  t h a t  t i m e  we would present what the  costs 

vere. 

i s  no disagreement as t o  a way t o  recover those costs. We 

vould simply not f e e l  rea l  comfortable i f  we incurred the  costs 

md  we came back and found t h a t  we had cost l e v e l s  which d i d n ' t  

f i t  rea l  we l l  w i t h  a base r a t e  proceeding approach. 

But a t  t h i s  t ime we a r e  t r y i n g  t o  make sure t h a t  there 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Why wouldn' t  - -  how do I say t h i s ?  
- 
- i r s t  o f  a l l ,  then, the f i r s t  question t h a t  comes t o  me i s  t h a t  

dhy wouldn' t  we simply make t h a t  determination a t  the t i m e  t h a t  

you come back. But t h a t  avoids what I understand t o  be what 

you are r e a l l y  requesting. What you are r e a l l y  requesting i s  

some comfort, some guidance on a going-forward basis from t h i s  

po in t  going forward. And my question then becomes - -  so I set 

aside the  f i r s t  question and ask t h i s  one - -  why then would not 

a determination by t h i s  - - l e t ' s  assume t h a t  you would get a 

decis ion from t h i s  Commission which e s s e n t i a l l y  says t h a t  the 

methodology, the process upon which t h i s  e n t i t y  has been 

developed appears a t  t h i s  po in t  t o  meet the p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  o f  

d the State o f  F lor ida,  and absent changed circumstances wou 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 

25 

700 

appear t o  be prudent. Why i s n ' t  t h a t  adequate assurance f o r  

you? 

MR. CHILDS: I ' m  no t  sure whether what you sa id  

Nas - - i t  sounded 1 i k e  you may have included t h e  process f o r  

recovery, but  I want t o  make sure. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: No, I said  noth ing about process o f  

I simply sa id  i t  meets the p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  and methodology. 

absent changed c i  rcumstances would appear t o  be prudent. 

MR. CHILDS: Well ,  because we have, I t h i n k ,  the  

po ten t i a l  t h a t  the cost recovery i n  the  sense o f  i nc lud ing  a 

cost  i n  the company's cost  o f  service may no t  permit  recovery. 

I t ' s  the  idea t h a t ,  f o r  instance, i f  costs are v o l a t i l e  or  i f  

costs can change, one o f  t he  th ings  t h a t  we have i s  we have an 

implementation t h a t  c a l l s  f o r  connections, w i t h  new serv ce 

connections by generators. And depending upon how those happen 

and how the costs are spread you can have costs t h a t  are no t  o f  

the normal l eve l  s tab le amount t h a t  are recognized 

appropr ia te ly  i n  base ra tes .  You can be h i t  w i t h  a b i g  amount, 

and i t  i s  d i f f i c u l t  t o  keep up w i th .  

We wanted you t o  know t h a t .  And t o  know t h a t  under 

those circumstances t h a t  we are concerned t h a t  the  recovery 

methodology i s  important when we have costs t h a t  may be 

incurred the way we a n t i c i p a t e  under Gr idFlor ida.  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very w e l l .  Any other  questions, 

Commissioners? 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Chairman, can I ask you and 

:ommissioner Deason t o  refresh my memory. When i t  was the 
three of us for awhile, we had an RTO workshop you may recall,  
and the discussion around - -  i t  may have even been an  Internal 
4ffairs, I d o n ' t  recall which - -  there was some discussion by 

3ur staff and a proposal by our staff t o  actually have 
:ridFlorida companies submit t o  us some proposal t h a t  we would 

approve f i r s t ,  sort of a f i r s t  state approval of the RTO as i t  

das planned before i t  went t o  FERC. And I remember the 
companies being very adamant t h a t  t h a t  wasn ' t  necessary. 

And as i t  related t o  costs, there was a l o t  of 

discussion by the companies about how i t  was premature t o  t a l k  

about costs because perhaps some of those costs could be 
consumed by what the companies were earning. And someplace i n  

the middle the Energy Commission entered an interim report t h a t  
included the creation of an RTO cost recovery clause. And then 
someplace after t h a t  we decided t o  take a look a t  the 
companies' earnings. And here we are today hearing, a t  least 
as i t  relates t o  me, for the f rs t  time t h a t  they were i n  the 
process of f i l i n g  some sort of RTO cost recovery filing. 

Help me understand and refresh my memory about the 
series of events t h a t  have occurred i n  the last year and a 
h a l f ?  Am I missing something? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I d o n ' t  have a basis t o  correct 
your memory. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I d o n ' t  have a basis t o  cor rec t  i t , 

e i t h e r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: What you ind icated t o  me 

seems - -  I r e c a l l  t h a t  being the general scenario, bu t  maybe 

s t a f f  can f i l l  i n  some o f  the d e t a i l s  b e t t e r  than I. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: And I w i l l  t e l l  you what 

concerns me, f rank ly ,  i s  I ' m  not  in te res ted  i n  discussing i n  

t h i s  proceeding making a f i nd ing  w i t h  respect t o  the cost 

recovery mechanism. That 's  not  t o  say I don ' t  be l ieve i t ' s  

important. But I t h i n k  t h a t  the  

record w i l l  be one-sided. 

I bel ieve i t  i s  c r i t i c a l .  

And I don ' t  want t o  f i n d  out a t  the  end o f  t h i s  

proceeding t h a t  I ' m  bound t o  make a decis ion j u s t  because the  

record was devoid o f  the benef i t s  re la ted  t o  having the costs 

o f f s e t  by earnings or  whether the creat ion o f  some clause i s  

appropriate. 

agree, t h a t  i s  a c r i t i c a l  issue. 

I wish I would have known ahead o f  t ime because I 

MR. CHILDS: Well, you know, I mentioned t h a t  we had 

the issues raised, and we had a schedule and we f i l e d  and 

served everybody i n  the docket w i t h  our testimony and d i r e c t .  

4nd t h a t  was i n  Ms. Dubin's testimony, and she makes t h a t  po in t  

about what we are asking f o r  and why. And the  schedule and the 

prehearing procedure c a l l s  f o r  other pa r t i es  t o  - -  s t a f f  and 

intervenors t o  f i l e  t h e i r  testimony a f t e r  we f i l e d  ours, and 

then t h a t  would have given us an opportuni ty t o  f i l e  r e b u t t a l .  
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So we f i l e d  the testimony and we went through the  discovery 

process on i t  and depositions. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Childs, t h a t ' s  a p lay  on 

words. You f i l e d  the testimony t o  no spec i f i c  issue t h a t  deals 

w i th  cost  methodology. So you are r e a l l y  good, bu t  i t ' s  a play 

on words. 

doesn't  say w i l l  the Commission make a f i nd ing  re la ted  t o  the 

cost methodology. 

Issue 4 asked what are the estimated costs. It 

MR. CHILDS: Well, our pos i t i on  d id ,  and we asked 

t h a t  s p e c i f i c a l l y  when we f i l e d  our l a s t  pos i t i on .  

j o i n t  f i l i n g  w i t h  Tampa E l e c t r i c  and we had a d i f fe rence 

between our pos i t i on  on Issue 4 and t h e i r s ,  and we ra ised t h a t  

s p e c i f i c a l l y  - -  

We had a 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Was i t  denied? It d i d n ' t  get  

incorporated. 

MR. CHILDS: - -  as our pos i t ion .  Pardon? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: It d i d n ' t  incorporated i n t o  t h i s  

proceeding. Does t h a t  mean i t  has already been decided? 

MR. CHILDS: It i s  incorporated i n t o  the  prehearing 

order as our pos i t i on  on t h a t  issue. 

MR. KEATING: 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: S t a f f ,  you wanted t o  make a 

Did you need something? 

comment? 

MR. KEATING: My comment was I was going t o  

suggest - -  I ' m  not  sure t h a t  t h i s  discussion i s  appropriate a t  
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this time. We have had an order issued t h a t  establishes a 
proceeding t h a t  set up the parameters of Phase I and 11. We 
had an  order t h a t  issued established the issues. We have had 

an  argument on the motion t o  strike yesterday, and i t  sounds 
like we are going back and rearguing a l o t  of t h a t  stuff right 
now, or i n  the alternative i t  sounds like we are hearing 
testimony t h a t  perhaps we should be hearing from Florida Power 
and Light ' s witness. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Right .  T h a t  was essentially how I 

tanted t o  bring this t o  - - w h a t  I understood the tenor of your 
comments, Mr. Childs, was essentially t o  preview Ms. Dubin's 
testimony by making i t  clear the purpose of t h a t  testimony, and 

te accept your comments. 
Regardless o f  t h a t ,  any decision about w h a t  the f i n a l  

order i n  this docket will be remains for the record t o  embrace 
and for staff t o  evaluate and analyze. So a t  this p o i n t  i n  

time i t  does us i n  my mind very l i t t l e  good t o  t ry  t o  brace or 
posture Ms. Dubin 's  testimony. 
be given proper weight i n  the record t h a t  we create. 

I t  says w h a t  i t  says and will 

MR. CHILDS: Well, tha t ' s  fine. And I really only 

intended i n  terms of the comment about t h a t  I mentioned earlier 
about Commissioner Palecki and what he said about w h a t  he was 
going t o  consider, I wanted him t o  understand why we are doing 

i t .  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Understood. 
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MR. CHILDS: I would c a l l  t o  your a t ten t ion ,  however, 

the - -  I ' m  looking a t  the  prehearing order i n  t h i s  docket, and 

i t ' s  Issue 4, and i t  ra ises  the  issue o f  what are the costs, 

m d  we also set f o r t h  the  costs. And we also set  f o r t h  i n  the 

3os i t ion which was i n  our prehearing statements and your 

wehearing order, i t  says FPL means t h a t  such incremental 

i r idF1 or ida  transmission charges are proper ly  recoverable 

through the capacity cost  - recovery c l  ause. 

i f  recovery o f  the incremental transmission costs through a 

"ecovery clause i s  required f o r  FPL t o  proceed w i t h  RTO 

ievelopment. And t h a t ' s  what we were pursuing and we f i l e d  the  

testimony f o r  t h a t  purpose. 

Expl i c i  t approval 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Mr. Childs, I j u s t  want you t o  

mow t h a t  I understand your pos i t ion ,  and I am sympathetic t o  

it. Just the sheer number o f  do l l a rs  we are t a l k i n g  about here 

Zer ta in ly  makes i t  prudent f o r  F lor ida Power and L igh t  t o  make 

they w i l l  recover costs i n  a way t h a t  i s  sa t i s fac to ry  t o  

I hope you a lso  understand t h a t  we are peddling as 

as we can here and we have a l o t  o f  issues t h a t  need t o  be 

.esolved. They are important issues. And I hope you 

mderstand i f  we are not  q u i t e  ready t o  address t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  

issue ye t .  

MR. CHILDS: Very w e l l .  And I w i l l  - -  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

706 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

MR. CHILDS: - -  proceed w i t h  the  witness, i f  t h a t  i s  

Very we1 1 . 

jppropr i  a te .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I would l i k e  t o ,  i f  we can, proceed 

v i t h  the  witness. 

:over your p o s i t i o n  on t h a t  p o i n t .  

I ' m  sure t h a t  your b r i e f  w i l l  adequately 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I t h i n k  the  p o s i t i o n  i s  very 

:1 ear. 

KOREL M. DUBIN 

was c a l l e d  as a witness on behal f  o f  

-1orida Power and L igh t  Company and, having been 

h l y  sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as fo l lows:  

DIRECT EXAM1 NATION 

3Y MR. CHILDS: 

Q Would you s ta te  your name and address, please? 

A My name i s  Korel Dubin, my business address i s  9250 

dest F lag le r  S t ree t ,  M i a m i ,  F lo r ida ,  33174. 

Q 

A 

By whom are you employed and i n  what capaci ty? 

I am employed by F lo r i da  Power and L i g h t  Company as 

qanager o f  Regulatory Issues. 

Q Do you have before you a document e n t i t l e d  F lo r i da  

Power and L igh t  Company, testimony o f  Korel M. Dubin, Docket 

Number 001148-E1, August 15, 2001? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Was t h a t  prepared by you as your test imony f o r  t h i s  
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proceeding? 

A Yes. 

Q 

A No, I do not.  

Q 

A Yes, I do. 

Do you have any changes or  correct ions t o  make t o  it? 

And do you adopt i t  as your testimony? 

MR. CHILDS: Commissioners, we ask t h a t  the prepared 

testimony o f  Ms. Dubin be inser ted  i n t o  the  record as though 

read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without ob ject ion,  show Ms. Dubin 's 

testimony i s  entered i n t o  the record as though read. 

MR. CHILDS: And I ask t h a t  the  document t h a t  she i s  

sponsoring be marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n .  It i s  KMD-1. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show i t  marked as Exh ib i t  18. 

(Exh ib i t  18 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n .  1 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

TESTIMONY OF KOREL M. DUBIN 

DOCKET NO. 001 148-El 

August 15,2001 

Please state your name, business address, employer and position. 

My name is Korel M. Dubin, and my business address is 9250 West Flagler 

Street, Miami, Florida, 33174. I am employed by Florida Power & Light 

Company (FPL) as the Manager of Regulatory Issues in the Regulatory 

Affairs Department. 

Please state your education and business experience. 

I received a Bachelor of Arts in Political Science from Emory University in 

1980 and in 1982 I received a Master of Business Administration from Barry 

University. In June 1982, I joined Florida Power and Light Company’s Fossil 

Fuel Section of the Fuel Resources Department. From 1982 through 1985 

my responsibilities included administration of fuel supply and operations 

contracts, development of procurement procedures, researchlanalysis of 

transportation options and by-product sales, and support for regulatory filings. 

In December of 1985 I joined the Rates and Research Department as a Rate 

Analyst. Since 1985, I have held various positions of increasing responsibility 

in the Rates and Research Department and the Regulatory Affairs 

1 
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6 in these clause dockets. 
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8 Q. 

Department and my primary responsibilities have been in the area of the 

adjustment clause filings. In June 2000 I became Manager of Regulatory 

Issues in the Regulatory Affairs Department where I am primarily responsible 

for the coordination, development, and preparation of the Company’s Fuel, 

Capacity and Environmental Cost Recovery filings. I am a company witness 

What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding? 

9 A. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 
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22 

23 Q. 

The purpose of my testimony is to illustrate the estimated incremental cost 

impact of purchasing transmission service from GridFlorida, LLC (GridFlorida) 

to serve FPL retail customers and to request approval of the methodology to 

quantify and recover such incremental GridFlorida transmission charges 

through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause. Such approval would avoid 

double recovery and underlover recovery of costs, would be administratively 

efficient, would greatly facilitate review of the level and basis for transmission 

costs in the future, and appear to be the type of costs the Commission 

acknowledged would be appropriate for recovery in establishing the Capacity 

Cost Recovery Clause. For illustrative purposes, my testimony also provides 

preliminary estimates of GridFlorida Transmission costs including the impact 

on FPL’s customers. My testimony addresses Issue No 4 of Prehearing 

Order No. PSC-01-1485-PSCO-El. 

Please briefly describe GridFlorida. 
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As discussed in GridFlorida Witness Mr. Naeve’s prepared Direct Testimony, 

GridFlorida is a for-profit Regional Transmission Organization (RTO). Florida 

Power & Light Company, Florida Power Corporation, and Tampa Electric 

Company (the Joint Applicants) formed GridFlorida in response to the Federal 

Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) Order 2000. On March 28, 2001, the 

FERC issued its Order provisionally granting RTO status to GridFlorida. 

GridFlorida will be a limited liability company and will own and operate 

transmission facilities divested to it by transmission owners in exchange for a 

non-voting membership interest and operate transmission facilities of other 

transmission owners that transfer operational control to GridFlorida pursuant 

to a Participating Owners Management Agreement. As a consequence, upon 

completion of the transfer of transmission facilities by FPL to GridFlorida, and 

the commencement of operation by GridFlorida, FPL will continue to provide 

the same retail transmission service but will be purchasing wholesale 

transmission service from GridFlorida. In addition, FPL’s traditional retail 

base return and 0 & M expenses associated with the transferred 

transmission assets will be replaced by purchased transmission O&M 

expenses incurred to provide transmission service to retail customers. 

As explained in GridFlorida Witness William Ash burn’s prepared Direct 

Testimony, once GridFlorida begins commercial operations, service over 

GridFlorida owned and / or operated facilities must be taken under 

GridFlorida’s Open Access Transmission Tariff. The Joint Applicants will 

3 
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each be charged the FERC approved transmission rates for all service 

including that associated with service at retail. The basis for the transmission 

charges to be applied by GridFlorida will differ from those of the individual 

Joint Applicants prior to GridFlorida operations. The structure of the charges 

for transmission service will move towards spreading cost responsibility for all 

transmission facilities among all participants in the peninsular Florida 

transmission service area. With the creation of GridFlorida all transmission 

related costs, including those that were formerly associated with the 

transmission on the utility’s own transmission facilities, will be billed by 

GridFlorida pursuant to tariffs approved by the FERC. These rates and 

charges will address not only the costs for operations formerly provided by 

the affected utility but will include other costs as well. We currently anticipate 

that the GridFlorida charges will consist of Zonal, System, Grid Management 

and Scheduling Charges. These charges are described in more detail in 

GridFlorida Witness William Ashburn’s prepared Direct Testimony. 

How does FPL propose to recover the costs associated with 

G rid FI o rida? 

FPL proposes to include incremental transmission costs for GridFlorida in the 

Capacity Cost Recovery Factor. However, FPL is not seeking recovery at this 

time. FPL is requesting approval of its proposed methodology to recover the 

incremental GridFlorida transmission charges through the Capacity Cost 

Recovery Clause. All costs included in my testimony today are for illustrative 

4 
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1 purposes. If the methodology is approved, FPL anticipates including the 

2 incremental GridFlorida transmission charges in the September 2002 

3 Capacity Cost Recovery Projection Filing for Commission review and 

4 

5 

6 Q. Please describe FPL’s proposed methodology to recover costs 

7 associated with GridFlorida. 

approval for recovery commencing in January 2003. 

8 A. 

9 Cost Recovery Factor. 

FPL proposes to include the GridFlorida transmission charges in the Capacity 

10  

11 
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GridFlorida Proiected Charges 

As described by GridFlorida Witness William Ashburn, the proposed 

GridFlorida charges include Zonal, System, Grid Management, and 

Scheduling charges. FPL proposes to include an additional schedule in the 

Capacity Cost Recovery filing providing these monthly projected charges. 

This proposed additional schedule is provided as KMD-1, Page 2 of 6. 

Preliminary estimates show that the payment to GridFlorida for transmission 

service purchased to serve retail load in 2003 is estimated to be $366 million 

(KMD-I, page 6 of 6). This consists of estimates of FPL payments for the 

Zonal Charge, System Charge, Grid Management Charge and Scheduling 

Service Charges (for estimating purposes, the scheduling costs are included 

in Accenture’s estimates of Grid Operating Expenses which are collected 

through the Grid Management Charge). 
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The Zonal Charge estimate of $293 million consists of FPL’s share of the 

revenue requirements for existing facilities in the FPL zone in service as of 

12/31/2000, including $4.7 million for FPL’s share of 20% of the TDU facilities 

revenue requirements included in the FPL zone. As Mr. Ashburn explains, 

the Zonal Charge recovers the revenue requirements of the zone utility and 

Seminole and FMPA facilities’ revenue requirements embedded in that zone 

pursuit to a phase-in schedule. Such facilities are automatically phased in to 

zonal revenue requirements at 20% per year beginning in year 1, or, 

alternatively, are included at 100% upon a showing at FERC that they meet 

the integration standard as defined in Order 888. 

The System Charge estimate of $23 million is a rough estimate used to 

illustrate FPL’s share of revenue requirements for New Facilities (for year 1, 

those facilities placed in service between 12/31/2000 and 12/31/2002). An 

estimate based on actual FPL plant additions was used as a proxy for FPL’s 

share of all GridFlorida participants’ New Facilities’ revenue requirements. 

The Grid Management Charge estimate of $50 million consists of the return 

on and amortization of FPL’s share of incremental start-up costs as shown in 

GridFlorida Witness William Ashburn’s Exhibit WRA-1 and FPL’s share of 

incremental ongoing annual grid operation costs as detailed in GridFlorida 

Witness Brad Holcombe’s exhibit BLH-3. 
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Adiustment for Transmission Costs in Base Rates 

In order to ensure that there is no double recovery, FPL’s proposed 

methodology calls for the GridFlorida costs to be adjusted for Transmission 

Costs in Base Rates. Each year the amount of transmission costs currently 

in base rates is to be adjusted for sales as described below. This amount 

would then be subtracted from the GridFlorida costs before inclusion in the 

Capacity Cost Recovery Factor calculation. For illustrative purposes, we 

have used the preliminary 2000 Cost of Service. (See KMD-I, Page 5 of 6). 

This shows that the imbedded cost of retail transmission service in 2000 is 

$265 million. However, this amount will be updated to reflect the results of the 

2002 cost of service. This $265 million would be divided by actual 2000 

MWh sales of 87,959,341 which results in 0.3013 cents per kWh. This 

0.3013 cents per kWh multiplied by the projected 2003 MWh sales of 

98,415,270 results in $296.5 million transmission costs included in base rates 

adjusted for sales. This results in the transmission cost in base rates 

escalated to 2003 to reflect the increase in sales in 2003. (See KMD-1, Page 

2 of 6, Note 1). This $296.5 million (KMD-I, Page 2 of 6, Line 6) is then 

subtracted from the total payment to GridFlorida of $366 million (KMD-I, 

Page 2 of 6, Line 5) resulting in a difference of $69.5 million (KMD-1, Page 2 

of 6, Line 7). 

Adiustment for Oil Backout 

One other adjustment FPL proposes is to reflect an Oil Back-out flow back to 
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customers, estimated at $1 0 million per year. Presently, the retail customers are 

not paying for any depreciation or return on the depreciable portion of the 500kv 

Line Oil Backout Project. When the assets are transferred, along with a 

depreciation reserve that reflects only straight line depreciation, the retail 

customer will then pay through the GridFlorida portion of the Capacity Cost 

Recovery charge a return on the net assets and depreciation expense based on 

straight line depreciation. The retail customer will pay this additional amount 

until the Oil Backout project is fully depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 

remaining life of the assets. In order to make this as revenue neutral as possible 

for the retail customers, FPL proposes to record a deferred gain for the 

accelerated depreciation which will be a liability and pay the retail customers a 

return on that liability through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause. Thus, the 

return that GridFlorida is charging FPL for the Oil Backout assets will be offset by 

the return FPL would be flowing back to the retail customers on the deferred 

gain. In addition, the amortization of the deferred gain will equate to the straight- 

line depreciation since both are being recorded over the same period of time, the 

remaining life. The depreciation expense on the Oil Backout assets that 

GridFlorida charges FPL for serving its retail load will be offset by the 

amortization of the gain. This $10 million Oil Backout adjustment (KMD-I, 

Page 2 of 6, Line 8) results in the incremental GridFlorida charges to be 

recovered through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause of $59.5 million (KMD- 

1, Page 2 of 6, Line 9) for 2003. 
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Total Costs Recovered through Capacity Cost Recovery Clause 

The $59.5 million is then carried forward to schedule KMD-1, Page 1 of 6, 

Line 11 and added to the other capacity costs projected for the year (For 

purposes of this illustration, all other capacity costs are shown as zero). The 

total cost is adjusted by the Revenue Tax Multiplier of 1.01 597, resulting in 

the estimated total cost to be recovered of $60 million (KMD-1, Page 2 of 6, 

Line 16). 

Allocation to Rate Classes and Factor Calculation 

Consistent with the regular Capacity Cost Recovery filing, costs are allocated 

to the rate classes on a 12CP and 1/13th demand basis. 1/13th of the cost is 

classified as energy-related and allocated on the basis of contribution to total 

kWh sales. The other 12/13th is classified as demand-related and allocated 

based on the contribution of each class to the 12 monthly system peaks. This 

demand based allocation methodology, used for the Capacity Cost Recovery 

Clause, is consistent with the treatment of transmission costs in base rates. 

KMD-I , Page 3 of 6 provides the calculation of energy and demand allocation 

percentages by rate class and KMD-1, Page 4 of 6 provides the calculation of 

the Capacity Cost Recovery Factors by Rate Class. These calculations use 

the average 12 CP load factor based on actual calendar data, demand and 

energy losses based on actual calendar data, and projected kWh sales for the 

year. For this illustration, actual calendar year 2000 data was used for the 12 
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CP load factor and energy and demand losses, and projected sales for 2003 

were used. KMD-1, Page 4 of 6 shows the preliminary incremental 

GridFlorida transmission costs of $60 million (adjusted for revenue taxes) 

allocated to each rate class and the resulting Capacity Cost Recovery Factor 

for each rate class. Based on these preliminary estimates, the impact of 

these incremental GridFlorida transmission costs in year 1 of GridFlorida 

operations is $0.69 on a Typical Residential 1,000 kWh Bill (See KMD-1, 

Page 4 of 6, RSI Rate Class). 

Filing Process 

FPL proposes to include the GridFlorida transmission charges (less the 

amount of transmission costs included in base rates adjusted for sales, and 

adjusted for the amortization of Oil Backout flow back) in its Capacity Cost 

Recovery Filings each year as part of the regular capacity cost recovery 

process where the Final True up is filed in April for the previous year, the 

EstimatedIActual True Up is filed in August for the current year, the 

Projections are filed in September for the subsequent year, the Hearing is 

held in November and new Capacity Charges reflecting incremental 

GridFlorida transmission charges become effective from January through 

Decem be r. 

Why is it appropriate to recover the incremental transmission costs for 

Grid Florida through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause? 
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FPL believes it is appropriate for the Commission to expressly approve the 

methodology to recover the GridFlorida transmission costs, to the extent they 

exceed the amount reflected in base rates, through the Capacity Cost 

Recovery Clause. Such approval would; 1) avoid double recovery, 2) avoid 

under/over recovery of costs, 3) would be administratively efficient and would 

greatly facilitate review of the level and basis for transmission costs in the 

future, and 4) appear to be the type of costs the Commission acknowledged 

would be appropriate in establishing the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause. 

First, FPL’s proposed methodology, whereby the GridFlorida transmission 

costs recovered through the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause are adjusted for 

the amount included in base rates, avoids double recovery of these costs. 

Second, these incremental transmission costs are volatile and as such are 

more appropriately reflected in a clause to avoid overhnder recovery of costs. 

As described in the Joint Panel Testimony regarding the GridFlorida proposal, 

the Joint Applicants currently have pending requests for interconnection of 53 

plants representing 26,468 MW of non-utility owned generation to come on 

line between 2001 and 2005. The speed with which future interconnections 

are made is uncertain and will result in unpredictable fluctuations in 

GridFlorida’s System Charge. There is also fluctuation in costs due to the 

various transition proposals of the pricing plan. As described in GridFlorida 

Witness William Ashburn’s prepared Direct Testimony, the cost shifting 
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mitigation mechanism of the GridFlorida pricing structure includes phasing- 

out of zonal charges in years 6 through 10, phasing in of credits for 

Transmission Dependent Utilities (TDU) facilities in years 1 through 5, and 

phasing out charges for pancaked rates in long-term contracts in years 6 

through IO. The combined affect of phasing out zonal charges and elimination 

of pancaked rates in years 6 through 10, along with the uncertainty of the 

level of new construction throughout GridFlorida and other factors prevent me 

from quantifying the actual potential charges for 2003. For instance, the 

current estimates of start-up and ongoing grid operation costs include a 20% 

to 30% contingency. 

Third, including the incremental GridFlorida transmission costs in the 

Capacity Cost Recovery Clause would be administratively efficient because 

GridFlorida costs would simply become part of the already established 

Capacity Cost Recovery filing and hearing process. Furthermore, including 

the incremental GridFlorida transmission costs in the Capacity Cost Recovery 

Clause would greatly facilitate review of the level and basis for transmission 

costs in the future since these costs would become part of the already 

established Capacity Cost Recovery Audits conducted by the Commission 

Staff Auditors each year. Additionally, including the incremental GridFlorida 

transmission costs in the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause rather than 

establishing a separate clause results in more than $1 million in savings in 

billing system programming costs. 
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Finally, when establishing the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause, the 

Commission acknowledged that costs other than purchased power capacity 

costs could be appropriate for recovery through the Capacity Cost Recovery 

Clause. In July 1991, this Commission issued Order No. 24840 opening a 

“generic docket” to investigate the recovery of off-system capacity purchases 

by Florida’s investor owned electric utilities. Thereafter, in February 1992, the 

Commission issued Order No. 25773 in Docket No. 910794-EQ. This order, 

which concluded the Commission’s generic investigation, established the 

Capacity Cost Recovery Clause that has been used thereafter. In 

establishing this clause, the Commission noted that the capacity portion of 

purchased power contracts has been recovered through base rates and that 

“the capacity portion of those costs are not recoverable until the utility has a 

full requirements rate case.” (Order at p. 4). Thus, to remove this 

disincentive, the Commission created the Capacity Cost Recovery Clause for 

the purpose of recovery of capacity costs not included in base rates. During 

the course of this generic docket, the Commission responded to requests to 

broaden the Clause to permit the recovery of costs other than those directly 

related to purchase power contracts. The Commission confined the Capacity 

Clause, which it approved for implementation but stated: 

“FPC and FIPUG suggested other costs which may be appropriate for 

inclusion in a capacity factor. FPC stated that any other fixed non-fuel 

costs associated with the purchase of capacity (such as non-fuel 0 & 
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M) should also be considered as well as any related transmission 

wheeling charges. FIPUG also suggested that conservation programs 

are related to demand side management and peak shaving. 

Therefore, we find any incentive payments under such programs to be 

capacity costs are to be included in the recovery factor. While there 

may be merit in these suggestions, we do not have sufficient 

information at this point to determine definitively what additional items 

may be appropriate. The suggestions would require consideration in a 

rate case or other generic proceeding to determine the exact nature 

and magnitude of such new charges. For the purpose of this docket, 

we find the recovery factor to be limited to approval of demand related 

capacity costs specifically identified in purchased power contracts. 

Other issues may be taken up in appropriate forums for possible 

inclusion on a utility by utility basis”. (Order No. 25773 at p. 5). 

FPL believes that the Commission clearly acknowledged that costs other than 

Capacity charges for purchased power contracts, specifically I‘. . . any related 

transmission wheeling charges,’’ could be appropriately recovered through the 

Capacity Clause but that to do so would require consideration of additional 

information. 

For these reasons, FPL believes it is appropriate to bring this matter to the 

Commission for consideration and approval. 
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1 Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 

2 A. Yes, itdoes. 
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BY MR. CHILDS: 

Q 

A Yes. The purpose of my testimony i s  t o  i l lustrate  

Ms. Dubin, would you please summarize your testimony? 

the estimated incremental impact of purchasing transmission 
service from GridFlorida t o  serve FPL retail customers, and t o  
request approval of a methodology t o  quantify and recover such 
incremental GridFlorida transmission charges through the 
capacity cost recovery clause. FPL proposes t o  include the 
GridFlorida transmission charges less the amount of 

transmission costs included i n  base rates adjusted for sales i n  

i t s  capacity cost-recovery filings each year as part of the 
we1 1 -estab1 ished capacity cost recovery process where the f ina l  

true-up i s  filed i n  April for the previous year, the estimated 
actual true-up is  filed i n  August for the current year, the 
projections are filed i n  September for the subsequent year, the 
hearing i s  held i n  November, and new capacity charges 
reflecting the incremental GridFlorida transmission charges 
become effective i n  January through December. 

All costs included i n  my testimony today are for 
illustrative purposes. 
anticipates including the incremental GridFlorida transmission 
charges i n  the September 2002 capacity cost recovery projection 
f i l i n g  for Commission review and approval for recovery 
commencing i n  January 2003. 

provided i n  my testimony, the impact of the incremental 

I f  the methodology i s  approved, FPL 

Based on preliminary estimates 
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GridFlorida transmission cost i n  year one of GridFlorida 
operations i s  69 cents on a typical residential 1000 kWh b i l l .  

The incremental GridFlorida transmission costs are 

volatile, and as such, are more appropriately reflected i n  a 
cost recovery clause. FPL believes i t  i s  appropriate for the 
Commission t o  expressly approve the methodology t o  recover the 
GridFlorida transmission costs t o  the extent t h a t  they exceed 
the amount reflected i n  base rates through the capacity 
cost - recovery cl ause. Thi  s methodol ogy t o  ad just for an amount 
i n  base rates and recover the incremental costs through the 
capacity cl ause i s  consistent w i t h  prior treatment, for 
example, our S t .  Johns capacity costs. 

Approval of the GridFlorida transmission costs 
through the capacity cost recovery cl ause would avoid double 
recovery of costs, avoid overhnderrecovery of costs, would be 
administratively efficient, and would greatly facil i tate the 
review of the level and basis for transmission costs i n  the 
future, and appear t o  be the types of costs the Commission 
acknowl edged w i  11 be appropriate i n  establ i shi ng the capacity 
cost recovery cl ause. 

This concludes my summary. 
MR. CHILDS: We tender Ms. Dubin for 

cross-examination. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Any cross from the aligned parties? 
Mr . McGl o th l  i n .  
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MR. McGLOTHLIN: I have one quick question f o r  

Z l a r i f i c a t i o n ,  i f  I may. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. McGLOTHLIN: 

Q Ms. Dubin, you sa id  t h a t  the  impact on the  t y p i c a l  

nes ident ia l  b i l l  would be 69 cents f o r  1000 kWh. What i s  the  

amount o f  the  t y p i c a l  r e s i d e n t i a l  b i l l  cu r ren t l y ,  and a 

i a l l p a r k  i s  f i n e ?  

A The t y p i c a l  1000 kWh res iden t ia l  b i l l  s t a r t i n g  i n  

k t o b e r  o f  t h i s  year i s  $81.66. That ' s  f o r  1000 kWh. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Tha t ' s  a l l  I have. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ms. Paugh. 

MS. PAUGH: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Howe. 

MR. HOWE: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : M r  . Twomey . 
MR. TWOMEY: I have j u s t  a few, Mr. Chairman. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q Good afternoon. 

A Good afternoon. 

Q On Page 7 o f  your p r e f i l e d  d i r e c t  testimony, on Line 

9 ,  you begin by saying t h a t  t h e  embedded cost o f  r e t a i l  

transmission service i n  the  year 2000 i s  265 m i l l i o n ,  correct? 

A Yes. 
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Q And then you are going t o  update t h a t  t o  r e f l e c t  the 

r e s u l t s  o f  2002 cost o f  service. And my question i s ,  and i t  

may be i n  your e x h i b i t  and I j u s t  d i d n ' t  understand i t , i s  the  

265 m i  1 1 i o n  composed o f  recovery on i nvestment and, therefore,  

l i k e  a f i x e d  cost recovery, or  i s  i t  var iab le  costs, o r  i s  i t  

both? 

A I t ' s  everything t h a t  would be included i n  base r i g h t  

So i s  t h a t  t o  say t h a t  i t  i s  both f i x e d  and var iab le 

now based on the cost o f  service f o r  2002. 

Q 
cost recovery? 

A Yes. 

Q Or do you know? 

A I bel ieve i t ' s  both. 

Q Do you know the r a t i o  i n  the 265 m i  

versus v a r i  ab1 e? 

A No, I do not.  

Q Who would know t h a t  i n  t h i s  proceed 

l i o n  o f  f i xed  

ng, i f  anybody? 

A I ' m  not  sure. Maybe one o f  the  other witnesses. 

Q Okay, f i ne .  Now, i f  I understand your methodology 

fo r  t h i s  adjustment, you are going t o  take t h a t  265 m i l l i o n  and 

you d i v ide  i t  by actual 2000-megawatt sales, r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q 

A Right. 

Q 

Which gives you the  .3013 cents per k i l owa t t  hour? 

And then you m u l t i p l y  i t  times your projected 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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k i lowa t t  hour sales for the year 2003, i s  t h a t  correct? 
That's correct, Mr. Twomey. What we are trying t o  do A 

i s  t o  recover only the incremental costs through the capacity 
clause. So w h a t  we want  t o  be able t o  do i s  give the customer 
the credit for the sales growth. So that 's  w h a t  we are trying 

t o  do there. 
Q Okay. B u t  help me understand th i s ,  i s  i t  not 

possible t h a t  i f  you take a factor t h a t  includes both fixed - -  
yes, inc udes both fixed and variable costs and then mult iply 

i t  times an increase i n  sales t h a t  you could recover more i n  

fixed costs t h a n  you would actually have? Do you follow my 

question? 
A No, I'm sorry, I d o n ' t .  

Q Okay. Let me t ry  i t  aga in .  Would i t  not be possible 
t h a t  you could have a - - handle the increased sales t h a t  you 

project for the year 2003 w i t h  the existing p l a n t  or fixed 
costs t h a t  you have now i n  the year 2001, i s  t h a t  possible? 

A The purpose of t h a t  adjustment i s  i n  order t o  adjust 
for sales so t h a t  you are not including too much of an 
incremental amount i n  your capacity clause. So t o  t h a t  extent 
i t ' s  a refinement so t h a t  customers get the benefit of the 
sal  es growth. 

Q Yes, ma'am. And I d o n ' t  mean t o  be unfair, and I 'm 

not t h a t  much of an accomplished cost accountant, b u t  you do 

Anderstand, of course, the difference between fixed and 
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var iab le costs, r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And my question i s  - -  and i t ' s  f i n e  i f  you 

d o n ' t  know, but do you know whether o r  not  the  f i x e d  cap i ta l  

assets tha t  you have now i n  prov id ing 2000 - -  yes, year 2000 

transmission services would be adequate t o  provide the same 

leve l  o f  service you pro jec t  f o r  the year 2003? Do you know 

t h a t  o r  not? 

A These are a proxy. These are f o r  i l l u s t r a t i v e  

purposes and i t ' s  based on 2000, and we use 2003 sales f o r  

i 11 u s t r a t i  ve purposes. 

Q Wel l ,  perhaps somebody t h a t  i s  more accomplished i n  

accounting can help me fo l low up on t h i s ,  but  the  r e s u l t  then 

i s  you are  going t o  have - - 
A Mr. Twomey, maybe - -  i t  i s  the same type o f  a 

ca lcu la t ion  t h a t  i s  used i n  the capaci ty clause r i g h t  now f o r  

incremental capaci ty costs t h a t  are recovered through the  

capacity cost recovery c l  ause. 

Q But those are - -  the capaci ty recovery charge now i s  

j u s t  for the recovery o f  energy costs, i s  i t  not? 

A I t ' s  the  recovery f o r  the capaci ty clause. 

Q I ' m  sor ry ,  capacity, r i g h t .  One l a s t  question. 

A Yes. 

Q Ms. Dubin, on your e x h i b i t  Page 2 o f  6? 

A Yes. 
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Q Help me understand the  numbers t h a t  are i n  the  lower 

l e f t -hand  corner o f  the e x h i b i t  i n  Note 1, the $265 m i l l i o n  

f igure? 

A Yes. 

Q That ' s  what you a c t u a l l y  spent f o r  transmission 

services i n  ZOOO? 

A That i s  the amount t h a t  was included i n  base using 

the 2000 cost o f  service. 

sales f o r  the same time t o  come up w i t h  cents per kwh. Then 

you take t h a t  amount times the pro jected sales t o  gross-up the  

xnount t h a t  i s  included i n  base, so t h a t  you are not 

wercharging the  customer i n  the amount t h a t  i s  going t o  be 

recovered through the incremental amount i n  the  capaci ty 

c l  ause. 

It i s  then d iv ided by the actual 

Q Okay. I see now. So you p r o j e c t  t h a t  you w i l l  pay 

: r idFlor ida 366 m i l l i o n  i n  the  year 2003, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes. 

Q You have taken from t h a t  amount your grossed up 296.5 

n i  11 ion? 

A Yes. 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q Which i s  the increment. Now, i t  i s  not the job o f  

Which you have gotten by your adjustment fac to r?  

Which gives you the 69.5 m i l l i o n ?  
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{our test imony t o  expla in  what add i t iona l  bene f i t s  are 

issoci ated w i t h  t h a t  69.5 m i  11 i on ,  r i g h t ?  

A 

iri dF1 o r i  da , yes. 

The other witnesses go t o  the  bene f i t s  o f  

MR. TWOMEY: That 's  what I thought. Thank you very 

iuch. That ' s  a l l .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ms. Dubin, we are t o l d  t h a t  there  

d i l l  be savings t h a t  w i l l  accrue as a r e s u l t  o f  t he  

implementation o f  Gr idFlor ida.  Does your analysis seek t o  

i d e n t i f y  those? And i f  so, how? 

THE WITNESS: Those w i l l  be included i n  the  other  

;estimony regarding the  bene f i t s  o f  Gr idFlor ida.  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. I n  your test imony here w 

fou speak about - - on Page 7 here, I bel ieve i t  was 7,  t he  

idjustment t o  base rates? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

iere 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Assuming t h a t  those savings would 

)e rea l i zed ,  you would expect a t  some po in t  i n  t ime t h a t  

instead o f  t h i s  net p o s i t i v e  number, you would begin t o  see a 

l e t  negative number, woul dn I t you? 

THE WITNESS: For t h e  costs included i n  Gr idFlor ida? 

1 ' m  sorry ,  Commissioner. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: On Page 7. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Beginning a t  Line 17, where you 
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r o j e c t e d  out the  t o t a l  amount t h a t  t he  295.5 m i l l i o n  would be 

ihat  was co l l ec ted  from base ra tes ,  cor rec t?  

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And then your payment t o  

; r idFlor ida i n  your analys is  would be - -  
THE WITNESS: Excuse me, Commissioner, I ' m  sorry ,  

:hat i s  not  an amount - - t h a t  would be the  amount t h a t  you 

voul d ad j u s t  , t h a t  you woul d cal  cu l  a te  your incremental costs. 

Je would be making no adjustments t o  base. The amount i n  base 

-ates would s t a y  the  same and you would - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Exact ly  my p o i n t .  Exact ly  my 

i o i n t .  Base ra tes  are going t o  der ive f o r  you i n  your 

i r o  j e c t i  on here 295.5 m i  1 1 ion .  

THE WITNESS: Yes. The adjustment t h a t  we make i s  

in ly f o r  the c a l c u l a t i o n  t o  ensure t h a t  we are no t  requesting 

"ecovery o f  t oo  much through the  capaci ty  clause, t h a t  we are 

g iv ing the  customers the  b e n e f i t  o f  t h a t  sales growth. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I understand, and I ' m  w i t h  you. 

9nd the  366 would be the  bas is  o f  your agreement w i t h  

GridFlor ida,  under the  prov is ions o f  your agreement w i t h  

Gr idFlor ida t h a t  would be your payment? 

THE WITNESS: That would be the  b i l l  t h a t  we would 

receive, yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: What I ' m  suggesting i s  t h a t  i f  we 

assume t h a t  the  pro jec t ions  f o r  the  impact o f  Gr idFlor ida,  we 
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dould u l t i m a t e l y  begin t o  see your payments t o  Gr idFlor ida 

mder your - - under the  agreement begin t o  fa1 1 below what 

i i s t o r i c a l l y  you pro jected under base ra tes  because o f  the  

savings. 

THE WITNESS: It could be, Commissioner. The reason 

dhy we are asking f o r  the  capaci ty  recovery i s  because the  

costs are hard t o  p r e d i c t  and so t h a t  any over or  

underrecoveries are r e f  1 ected i n  the  capaci ty  c l  ause. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You take me - -  segue i n t o  my 

I f  you f o l l o w  your methodology and we as question, then. ime 

my hypothet ica l ,  then i s n ' t  t h a t  v o l a t i l i t y  going t o  cause you 

t o  then go i n t o  a per iod where you are going t o  probably be 

having a c r e d i t ,  more c r e d i t s  than p o s i t i v e  recoveries under 

your clause? 

THE WITNESS: I d o n ' t  know t h a t  t o  be t h e  case, 

bu t  - -  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: But i t  could 

THE WITNESS: Depending on the  

you may see savings i n  other areas. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Thank 

MR. KEATING: Just  a few quest 

CROSS EXAM1 NATION 

BY MR. KEATING: 

Q Ms. Dubin, d i d  you evaluate i n  

occur? 

costs.  And I t h i n k  

you. S t a f f .  

ons. 

prepar ing your 

testimony any cost recovery methodology other than the cost 
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A I looked a t  the costs f o r  Gr idFlor ida and evaluated 

them t o  see what would be the most appropriate method o f  

recovery. 

Q So d i d  you evaluate any methodology other than the 

cost recovery c l  ause? 

A We looked a t  a l l  the methods t h a t  we have and i t  was 

the best f i t  w i t h  the capacity cost recovery clause because o f  

the v o l a t i l i t y  o f  the costs. 

Q 

A We looked a t  a l l  the clauses. 

Q A l l  the clauses? 

A Uh-huh. And we looked a t  the costs. Maybe t h a t ' s  a 

What methodologies d i d  you evaluate? 

be t te r  way t o  describe i t . We looked a t  the costs t o  see how 

they may be be t te r  re f l ec ted .  The costs f o r  Gr idFlor ida a re  

v o l a t i l e .  And t r a d i t i o n a l l y  a cost-recovery clause i s  the most 

appropriate method t o  recover costs t h a t  are v o l a t i l e  so t h a t  

you ensure t h a t  there i s  no overcharging or  undercharging o f  

costs. 

Q I n  preparing your testimony, d i d  you evaluate the 

impact on ratepayers o f  recovery through base rates? 

A No. We looked a t  i t  and the costs were v o l a t i l e  and 

they are more appropriate through a capacity cost  recovery 

c l  ause. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me. That doesn ' t prec l  ude 
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overrecovery or underrecovery of costs, does it? 
THE WITNESS: No, Commissioner. But with - -  for 

example, if I just looked strictly at, say, the 
interconnections, right now - -  this goes to the volatility of 
the costs. There are currently 74 pending requests for 
interconnections representing 37,000 megawatts. It is very 
difficult to predict how many interconnections will be made, 
how quickly they will be made, how much they will cost. And 
conversely, with the slowdown in the economy, you don't know if 
that is going to occur at all or if the interconnections are 
going to slow down. 

Our projections of those costs can vary in the tens 
of millions each year. So a cost recovery clause, the capacity 
cost recovery clause is appropriate for it so that you don't 
overcharge or undercharge. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Aren't you charging - -  I think you 
mentioned here that there is a charge for each interconnection, 
right? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And that is not covered in the 

majority of the costs of that interconn ction? 
THE WITNESS: Well, these are the pending 

interconnections associated with GridFlorida. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I understand. But in terms - - 

going to your issue of volatility, even if you had the increase 
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n v o l a t i l i t y ,  wouldn't  the costs, the  interconnection charges 

:over essen t ia l l y  the  ma jo r i t y  o f  those costs so t h a t  i t  would 

;mooth any k ind  o f  v o l a t i l i t y  curve there? 

THE WITNESS: No. The amount o f  the 

interconnections, how frequent ly they are going t o  be made, a l l  

iepend on how much those costs would be. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. But how does t h a t  a f f e c t  

lour v o l a t i l i t y ?  We had testimony e a r l i e r  t h a t  the revenue 

'ecovery mechanism t h a t  GridFl o r ida  would have t o  employ would 

)e a tariff f i l i n g  a t  FERC. And t h a t  there i s  r i s k  upon 

; r idFlor ida,  i n  f a c t ,  even incent ive  f o r  them t o  operate 

2 f fec t i ve l y  because they have t o  make a tariff f i l i n g ,  k ind  o f  

l i k e  a base r a t e  proceeding which you want t o  avoid, bu t  

ipparent ly GridFlor ida would have t o  do w i t h  FERC. And t h a t  i t  

vould seem t o  me t h a t  would minimize your v o l a t i l i t y  u n t i l  they 

:ould make a r a t e  f i l i n g  and change the r a t e  which you pay. 

'HE WITNESS: Right, bu t  there would be changes from 

fear t o  year and there would a1 so be - - there i s  phasing i n  o f  

:osts, there i s  phasing out o f  costs. Right now there i s  some 

mcer ta in ty .  There i s  contingencies added i n t o  some o f  t he  

zests r i g h t  now because o f  t he  uncertainty,  and some o f  t he  

i o l a t i l i t y  o r  f luc tua t ions  i n  costs regarding interconnections 

dhether o r  not ,  as I said, there i s  74 pending requests r i g h t  

  OW, how f a s t  those - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: But those requests are somebody 
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;hat interconnects and they are going t o  be paying transmission 

'evenue t o  GridFlor ida,  are they not? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Which could have the e f f e c t  o f  

iecreasing your net  b i  1 ,  correct? 

THE WITNESS: It could. It could go both ways. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, can you compare what the 

i o l a t i l i t y  o f  transmission costs t h a t  you pay t o  GridFlor ida i n  

-e la t i on  t o  fue l  costs? 

THE WITNESS: 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: 

THE WITNESS: I t h i n k  the  costs f o r  the 

I n  terms o f  v o l a t i l i t y ?  

I n  terms o f  vol a t i  1 i ty,  yes. 

interconnections are uncertain. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: No, I ' m  not  t a l k i n g  about - -  

I'm t a l k i n g  about what you pay t o  GridFlor ida.  I assume - -  I 

j o n ' t  know how i t ' s  going t o  work, but  i f  you w r i t e  a monthly 

zheck t o  GridFlor ida,  how much i s  t h a t  going t o  change from one 

nonth t o  the next? 

THE WITNESS: That I d o n ' t  know. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So you wouldn' t  know how t h a t  

dould compare w i t h  fue l  costs, e i t he r .  I guess I ' m  having a 

d i f f i c u l t y  understanding why these charges are so v o l a t i l e  t h a t  

they have t o  be recovered through a clause. 

THE WITNESS: Well, there i s  a couple o f  d i f f e r e n t  

things w i th  the  p r i c i n g  proposals t h a t  I t h i n k  some o f  the 
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3ther witnesses have t a l  ked about or are t a l  k ing  about .  The 
?hasing i n  of costs, the phasing out  o f  costs, as well as some 
Df the uncertainty, as well as some of these interconnections 
and how frequently they will be made, wha t  they will cost. And 

just looking a t  our projections for interconnections, the 
dollars can fluctuate i n  the tens of millions each year. 

Is  t h a t  included i n  the COMMISSIONER PALECKI: 

record? I d o n ' t  recall seeing t h a t  study. Is t h a t  an FPL 

projection? 
THE WITNESS: Yes. 
COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Is i t  part of your testimony 

or any of the testimony t h a t  has been filed? 
THE WITNESS: I believe i t  was a late-fi led exhibit 

t a l k i n g  about the amount of interconnections. 
Mr. Palecki - -  

I d o n ' t  know, 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Sta f f  , has t h a t  document been 
filed t o  your knowledge? 

MR. KEATING: There was a table t h a t  was a late-fi led 
exhib i t  t o  the panel deposition t h a t  was the number of - -  

THE WITNESS: I have i t  here. I t ' s  j o i n t  panel 
-ate-filed Exhibit  Number 2 ,  which talks about the t o t a l  

negawatt hours. Excuse me, t o t a l  megawatts. 
MR. KEATING: T h a t  table i s  - -  the represents the 

interconnection queue i t ' s  my understanding, but no dollars. 
COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Are there dol 1 ars ref1 ected on 
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that e x h i b i t ?  

THE WITNESS: There are not d o l l a r s  r e f l e c t e d  on t h a t  

sxhi b i  t. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: So t h a t  i s  the  e x h i b i t  t h a t  we 

saw e a r l i e r  regarding the  number o f  interconnect ions from 

projected new generation i n  the  State o f  F lo r ida? 

THE WITNESS: Right .  There are dol 1 ars associated 

j u s t  i n  the proxy t h a t  i s  included i n  my testimony where we 

t a l k  about addi t ions are 123 m i l l i o n  f o r  1999 and 2000, we have 

used t h a t  as a proxy. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: I guess I ' m  t ry ing  t o  

understand not on ly  where the  v o l a t i l i t y  l i e s ,  bu t  the 

po ten t i a l  d o l l a r  amounts. 

f i l e  t h a t  you are aware o f  t h a t  might provide tha t  informat ion 

t o  us? 

I s  there something t h a t  you could 

THE WITNESS: I'm sure we could f i l e  something. The 

amount o f  interconnections t h a t  we are f i l i n g  and the megawatt 

hours are included i n  t h i s  e x h i b i t .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: And apart from the number o f  

interconnections from new generation, what are some o f  the  

other areas t h a t  could cause v o l a t i l i t y ?  

THE WITNESS: There i s  the phasing i n  o f  some o f  the 

costs and phasing i n  t h a t  some o f  the other witnesses 

described. The phasing out  o f  the zonal charges i n  years s i x  

through ten, phase i n  o f  c r e d i t ,  the phasing out  o f  pancake 
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As wel l  as some o f  the other costs are the  GridFlor ida 

nanagement costs as w e l l  as the s t a r t - u p  costs. They have 

zontingencies t h a t  a re  i n  the neighborhood o f  20 t o  30 percent 

3ecause o f  uncertainty.  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Do you an t i c ipa te  t h a t  there 

dould continue t o  be a great deal o f  v o l a t i l i t y  a f t e r  the RTO 

i s  established, and l e t ' s  j u s t  say i n  i t s  t e n t h  year o f  

operation are we s t i l l  going t o  be seeing v o l a t i l i t y  o r  w i l l  

things have s e t t l e d  down by then? 

THE WITNESS: That would be a guess on my par t ,  

Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: I know t h a t  F lo r i da  Power and 

L igh t  has been very successful i n  the  past when we have put i n  

place incent ive mechanisms. And one o f  the  areas t h a t  I 

personally would l i k e  t o  look i n t o ,  espec ia l l y  when we t a l k  

about the creat ion o f  the RTO prov id ing add i t iona l  generation 

choices and perhaps lower costs because o f  those addi t ional  

choices, i s  some s o r t  o f  an incent ive mechanism t h a t  would 

a l l o w  F lo r ida  Power and L igh t  and the  other u t i l i t i e s  t o  

increase t h e i r  p r o f i t s  as they work t o  decrease t h e i r  costs. 

Have you looked a t  any s o r t  o f  mechanism l i k e  t h a t  t h a t  could 

work e i the r  w i t h i n  one o f  the clauses o r  i n  base rates? 

THE WITNESS: Not f o r  Gr idFlor ida,  no. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: I t h i n k  I would l i k e  t o  ask 

f o r  a l a t e - f i l e d  e x h i b i t ,  Mr. Chairman, t h a t  would j u s t  r e f l e c t  
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I d o n ' t  what po ten t ia l  dol 1 a r  vol a t i  1 i t y  we' r e  t a l  k ing  about. 

know how t o  be any more spec i f i c ,  but  I guess I would ask the  

company t o  use, you know, the best informat ion they have 

avai lab le from t h e i r  pro ject ions.  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show t h a t  marked as Exh ib i t  19. 

( L a t e - f i l e d  Exh ib i t  19 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Ms. Dubin, i s  i t  t h a t  the costs 

are v o l a t i l e  o r  t h a t  the costs are recu r r i ng  t h a t  gives you 

concern? 

THE WITNESS: The costs being v o l a t i l e  and the  

f luc tua t ions  i n  them. P a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  interconnections, we 

don ' t  know how qu ick l y  they w i l l  be made, how slowly they w i l l  

be made, how many, what they w i l l  cost .  And add i t i ona l l y  w i t h  

the  slowdown i n  the economy also i t  could go the opposite way, 

they could be a l o t  slower than we thought. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Did you an t i c ipa te  t h a t  some o f  

t h a t  concern could be put aside by executing some s o r t  o f  

contract  t h a t  would lock  the p r i c e  i n ?  

THE WITNESS: I s t i l l  t h i n k  t h a t  maybe the amount o f  

interconnections may s t i l l  a f f e c t  t h a t .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Explain t o  me how, 

because I want t o  understand the  concern re la ted  t o  v o l a t i l i t y  

a l i t t l e  b i t  more. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. Right now there i s ,  I t h i n k ,  74 

pending requests f o r  over - -  I t h i n k  i t ' s  30,000 megawatts. We 
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don ' t  know how - -  i f  they are a l l  going t o  - -  how they are 

going t o  p lay  i n .  Are they going t o  be made a l l  a t  the same 

time, i f  they are going t o  be spread out over a longer per iod 

o f  t ime, i f  we are going t o  have addi t ional  ones, i f  the 

slowdown i n  the economy i s  going t o  lessen them. We d o n ' t  know 

what the  costs f o r  a l l  o f  those are. We do know look ing a t  

FPL's costs t h a t  those costs can f l uc tua te  i n  the  neighborhood 

o f  tens o f  m i l l i o n s  from year t o  year. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: And those interconnections are 

not w i t h i n  your cont ro l?  

THE WITNESS: They are w i t h i n  the whole g r i d  region. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I t h i n k  t h a t ' s  t he  po in t  t h a t  I 

was going t o  i nqu i re  about next was the f a c t  t h a t  these are 

costs over which you have no cont ro l .  And I guess the  question 

i s  your theme seems t o  be t h a t  these are v o l a t i l e  costs l i k e  

f u e l ,  therefore,  there should be a clause t o  recover those. 

Did you g ive consideration t o  the  f a c t  t h a t  t h i s  i s  a needed 

input  f o r  you t o  provide service, and these costs are b a s i c a l l y  

costs you incur  under a tariff under which you have no contro l  

over those costs as being a basis t o  have a recovery under some 

type o f  a clause procedure? 

And what I draw your a t ten t i on  t o  i s  i n  the  water and 

wastewater indus t ry ,  i n  fac t ,  i t ' s  w i t h i n  s ta tu te  f o r  a water 

o r  wastewater company t h a t  purchases water from another 

u t i l i t y ,  o r  when there i s  an e l e c t r i c  r a t e  increase, these are 
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zosts over which - -  are essent ia l  services over which they 

zannot contro l  and they are b a s i c a l l y  subject t o  some type o f  a 

tariff which i s  mandated, we a l low pass-through o f  those costs. 

de d o n ' t  - -  i t ' s  not  w i t h i n  a clause, we j u s t  change the  

zompany' s base rates.  

And, Commissioner Jaber, you may be more f a m i l i a r  

Ai th t h i s  than I am, but we change the  companies base ra tes  

Ahen there i s  a change i n  t h a t  ra te .  

:r idFlorida changes i t s  tariff once a year, and you present 

that  t o  us and said, you know, t h i s  i s  what we were paying 

before under t h i s  tariff and i t  has increased ten  percent, and 

t h i s  i s  what we pro jec t .  Have you looked a t  some type o f  

nechanism o f  t h a t  sor t ,  a pass-through mechanism as opposed t o  

a recovery clause mechanism? 

For example, i f  

THE WITNESS: No, Commissioner. We looked a t  the  

clause because o f  the f luc tua t ions  i n  i t , as we l l  as some other 

e f f i c i enc ies  t h a t  you might ga in from it. 

de l l -es tab l i shed clause, i t ' s  got  hearings set,  i t ' s  got  an 

audi t  process already i n  place, from a b i l l i n g  standpoint i t  i s  

already i n  our b i l l i n g  system. So we looked a t  those th ings,  

also. 

I t ' s  a 

COMMISSIONER JABER: But t h a t  goes back t o  the  po in t ,  

regardless o f  the  amount o f  f l uc tua t i on ,  i f  i t  i s  t r u l y  a cost 

you have t o  bear and there i s n ' t  even s o r t  o f  a prudency review 

o r  a t rue-up  t h a t  i s  necessary, wouldn' t  a pass-through 
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nechanism o f  on ly  t h a t  cost be preferable? 

THE WITNESS: We1 , I t h i n k  t h a t  t h e  method t h a t  we 

proposed would work i n  t h a t  so t h a t  you d o n ' t  overcharge o r  

undercharge the customers i n  t h a t  same way. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: How i s  t h a t  d i f f e r e n t  from a 

s t r i c t  pass-through? How would you ever be i n  a p o s i t i o n  o f  

undercharging and overcharging i f you are j u s t  passing through 

the interconnect ion costs? 

THE WITNESS: Well ,  you are able t o  t rue -up  f o r  

overrecoveri es and underrecoveri es i n the  c l  ause. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: What t h a t  real ly says i s  you need 

f l e x i b i l i t y  i n  how you charge back t o  the  interconnecters.  

That 's  the  on ly  way you could r e a l l y  have substant ia l  

overrecoveries and underrecoveries. You need f l e x i  b i  1 i t y  under 

your t a r i f f s ,  under the  Gr idF lo r ida  t a r i f f s ,  i s n ' t  t h a t  r e a l l y  

the po in t?  

THE WITNESS: We looked a t  the  cost recovery clause 

because o f  the  f l uc tua t i ons  i n  costs, and t h a t ' s  why we 

proposed the method t h a t  we have. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. And once and f o r  a l l ,  

t h a t ' s  t he  only  t h i n g  you looked a t ,  you only  looked a t  t he  

c l  auses as a possible cost  recovery mechanism? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. We looked a t  - - 
COMMISSIONER JABER: So t o  the degree we found a cost  

recovery mechanism i n  the  f u t u r e  t h a t  would address your 
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Zoncerns about f luc tua t ions  and being able t o  t rue-up  f o r  the 

i e n e f i t  o f  the consumer, you would f i n d  t h a t  acceptable? 

THE WITNESS: I bel ieve so. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me k ind  o f  c l a r i f y .  The 

i a s i s  o f  my question was not  t o  suggest t h a t  a pass-through i s  

iecessar i l y  preferable i n  t h i s  s i t u a t i o n  than a clause. 

l o t  r e a l l y  sure. I guess t h a t  j u s t  may be something t h a t  needs 

to be explored. But I guess the basis o f  t he  question i s  more 

3long the l i n e s  o f  the  f a c t  t h a t  i t  seems t o  me t h a t  perhaps a 

j u s t i f i c a t i o n  f o r  some type o f  e i t he r  a pass-through or  a 

Aause recovery mechanism i s  the f a c t  t h a t  these are essent ia l  

services under which you must - - you must ob ta in  and must pay a 

t a r i f f e d  r a t e  which i s  set  by a regulatory  body, and t h a t  i t  

should be recovered under some type o f  a mechanism not because 

the costs necessar i ly  are going t o  f luc tua te ,  bu t  because o f  

the f a c t  t h a t  they are essent ia l  and the r a t e  t h a t  you pay i s  

set by a regulatory  au thor i ty .  

I ' m  

And i t  seems t o  me t h a t  there are incent ives f o r  a 

J t i l i t y  t o  operate e f f i c i e n t l y  when they can contro l  costs. 

4nd, therefore,  t h a t  i s  one o f  the reasons why you set cost 

recovery under a base r a t e  scenario. 

incent ives and even a1 1 ows revenue sharing mechani sms, which 

Commissioner Palecki ind icated e a r l i e r .  But i f  you have no 

control  over Gr idF lo r ida 's  costs, perhaps t h a t  i s  the reason 

why i t  shouldn' t  be par t  o f  base rates and i t  perhaps would be 

It gives proper 
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appropriate t o  include i n  some type o f  a recovery mechanism, a 

pass-through, o r  a clause, or something o f  t h a t  so r t .  And you 

d i d  not  give any consideration t o  t h a t ,  i t  was s t r i c t l y  

v o l a t i l i t y  was the basis f o r  your testimony? 

THE WITNESS: The v o l a t i l i t y  and the  uncer ta in ty  o f  

the costs. 

i t  too  high or  too  low. And the capaci ty clause a l locates 

transmission costs as a revenue requirement would using the 

12 CP and ,1/13th, and a lso i t  has been establ ished before t h a t  

there i s  other incremental costs t h a t  go through the capaci ty 

clause where an adjustment i s  made f o r  what i s  included i n  

base. 

a schedule set ,  and t h a t  there i s  an aud i t  process and a l l  o f  

t ha t .  

I f  we set i t  as the  base rates,  we would be s e t t i n g  

It i s  a wel l -estab l ished clause, i t ' s  one where there i s  

Add i t iona l l y ,  the savings i n  terms o f  b i l l i n g .  There 

i s  about a m i l l i o n  d o l l a r s  i n  savings i n  j u s t  our b i l l i n g  

system t o  include i t  t h a t  way. So those are some o f  the th ings 

we looked a t  i n  determining t h a t  i t  made sense t o  ask f o r  

recovery through t h a t  clause. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I ' m  sorry ,  Commissioner, were you 

done? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, I was a l i t t l e  puzzled by 

your l a s t  statement as t o  why one mechanism i s  less c o s t l y  i n  

terms o f  b i l l i n g  costs than another. Can you explain? 

THE WITNESS: Because i t  would simply be added t o  the 
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capaci ty charge now, so i t  would not  - - i t  would be i n v i s i b l e  

t o  our b i l l i n g  system. It would j u s t  be included i n  t h a t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So i t  would j u s t  be numbers 

added t o  t h a t  mechanism which already ex i s t s?  

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. That ' s  a c l a r i f i c a t i o n  I 

needed. You're no t  proposing s i m i l a r  t o  the  i n t e r i m  repor t  t he  

c rea t ion  o f  some new clause? 

THE WITNESS: No. We would be us ing the  establ ished 

clause, we would be using a l l  t he  same forms, a l l  t he  same 

f i l i n g  dates, t he  same audi ts ,  and the  same b i l l i n g  procedure. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Any other questions? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: It j u s t  begs a question. I f  you 

thought we always had the  a u t h o r i t y  t o  a l low recovery f o r  an 

RTO using the capaci ty  recovery clause, how d i d  you l e t  t he  

recommendation get  so f a r  i n  the i n t e r i m  repor t?  Why d i d  you 

l e t  i t  get t h a t  f a r ?  

THE WITNESS: I ' m  sorry.  

COMMISSIONER JABER: I am sure you are the  wrong 

person t o  ask t h i s .  There i s  a recommendation i n  the  Energy 

Commission i n t e r i m  repor t  t h a t  c a l l s  f o r  t he  c rea t i on  o f  a cost  

recovery clause f o r  t he  RTO. And i f  i t  was always poss ib le  t o  

have recovery through our capaci ty clause, why d i d  your company 

support the Energy Commission proposal as i t  r e l a t e s  t o  

c rea t ing  a new clause? 
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THE WITNESS: That I ' m  no t  sure - -  I know we had 

11 ways been d i  scussi ng c l  ause recovery. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: This i s  why B i l l  Walker never 

;est i  f i es . 
(Laughter. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And on t h a t  note, s t a f f ?  

MR. KEATING: S t a f f  has no f u r t h e r  questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very w e l l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I have a quick question. How 

j i d  you determine the  amount o f  transmission costs t h a t  are 

:u r ren t ly  being recovered i n  base rates? I know you s ta r ted  

v i th  265 m i l l i o n  and then you - -  t h a t  was f o r  2000 actual ,  then 

/ou escalated i t  f o r  increased sales i n  the  year 2003. I guess 

ny question i s  what was the  bas is  f o r  t he  265 m i l l i o n ?  

THE WITNESS: We looked a t  t he  2000 costs o f  service,  

:hat i s  t he  t r a d i t i o n a l l y  a l loca ted  costs o f  serv ice and t h a t  

i s  where we go t  our numbers from. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So t h a t  cost  o f  serv ice study, 

911 o f  t he  transmission costs were a l loca ted  and you took - -  
md  i t  was $265 m i l l i o n ?  

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And costs o f  service,  t h a t  

includes r e t u r n  on the  investment, a p r o f i t  l e v e l ?  

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And income taxes on t h a t ?  
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THE WITNESS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Redi r e c t  . 
MR. CHILDS: Yes, I have questions. 

RED1 RECT EXAM1 NATION 

iY MR. CHILDS: 

Q Ms. Dubin, does F lo r i da  Power and L i g h t  Company 

u r r e n t l y  make adjustments i n  the  capaci ty clause f o r  capaci ty 

:osts t h a t  are purchased - -  o r ,  excuse me, t h a t  are recovered 

:hrough base rates? 

A Yes, we do. 

Q 

:ontracts? 

And are those capaci ty  costs f o r  purchased power 

A Yes. 

Q Does the company a lso recover some transmission costs 

ihrough the capaci ty clause cu r ren t l y?  

A Yes, we do. 

Q And does i t  also pass through t o  customers the  

i e n e f i t s  o f  transmission charges t h a t  i t  c u r r e n t l y  makes? 

A Yes, those revenues are flowed back through the  

Zapaci t y  c l  ause. 

Q So i s  i t  correct  then t h a t  the proposal you are 

naking i s  simply f o r  an add i t iona l  type o f  charge f o r  

transmission t o  be r e f l e c t e d  i n  the  clause? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you know whether i f  GridFlor ida had formula ra tes  
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that t he  actual costs associ ated w i t h  interconnections o r  other 

zosts would be passed on t o  a l l  o f  the  pa r t i c i pan ts  o f  

k i d F l o r i d a ,  i f  they had formula rates? 

A I ' m  sorry,  M r .  Chi lds.  

Q Do you know whether GridFlor ida has formula rates o r  

i s proposing formul a rates? 

A No. 

Q Pardon? 

A No. 

Q Okay. Do yo know 

A Mr. Mennes. 

rho might know? 

Q I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  make a d i s t i n c t i o n  about whether the 

zosts are set  on an h i s t o r i c  basis o r  whether they are set  t o  

pecover actual costs, and you a re  not aware? 

A No. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Chi 1 ds, i s t h a t  something 

that we are going t o  be able t o  explore w i t h  another witness? 

4 l o t  o f  f o l k s  i n  the back o f  the room are shaking t h e i r  heads 

l i k e  they don ' t  want t o  touch i t , but are we going t o  explore 

that? 

MR. CHILDS: Another one, huh? Pardon? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Are we going t o  able t o  explore 

that  w i t h  another witness? 

MR. CHILDS: We w i l l  t ry ,  yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Because I want some more 
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informat ion o f  what you re fe r red  t o  as formula rates,  because 

i t  seems l i k e  t h a t  may be something d i f f e r e n t  from what I heard 

e a r l i e r  from Mr. Naeve i n d i c a t i n g  t o  me t h a t  there are 

incent ives w i t h i n  the regulatory  mechanism f o r  GridFlor ida t o  

operate e f f i c i e n t l y .  And depending on what the  d e f i n i t i o n  o f  

formula rates are, i t  appears l i k e  i t  might be j u s t  a t o t a l  

pass-through. You crank out a formula and t h a t ' s  what they 

receive i n  terms o f  what they b i l l  out and receive and there 

may not  be a l o t  o f  incent ive  f o r  Gr idFlor da t o  operate 

e f  f i  c i  e n t l  y. 

MR. CHILDS: We w i l l  t r y  t o  address t h a t  f o r  you. 

And I ' m  t ry ing  t o  go t o  your po in t  about whether the 

d i s t i n c t i o n  between the - - o r  the suggested d i s t i n c t i o n  between 

the way t h a t  Gr idFlor ida might charge, which I characterized o r  

thought o f  as on a h i s t o r i c  basis, s e t t i n g  ra tes  f o r  f i x e d  

costs on a p r i o r  period. We w i l l  come back t o  t h a t .  

BY MR. CHILDS: 

Q Ms. Dubin, I wanted t o  ask you about the questions on 

interconnect ion charges and the costs t h a t  are associated w i t h  

interconnection. Do you know what costs the  e n t i t y  seeking 

interconnection would pay d i r e c t l y  f o r  interconnection, what 

type o f  costs they would pay? 

A I know how many they are and how many are pending 

r i g h t  now, Mr. Childs. 

Q Do you know whether there are c e r t a i n  costs 
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associated w i t h  interconnection t h a t  are system costs t h a t  are 
not charged t o  the entity t h a t  is  seeking t o  interconnect? 

A They are a l l  considered system charges for 
GridFlorida. 

Q And how are the system charges recovered? 
A System charges would be recovered - -  I'm sorry, 

through the - -  we would get a percentage of those. 
They would be allocated t o  Florida Power Q 

A Yes. 
Q They would be allocated t o  a l l  users, wo 

and Light? 

rld they not? 
A Yes. I t ' s  for a l l  the users o f  the region. 

Q And so some of the costs of interconnection would be 
allocated t o  a l l  users? 

A Yes. 

Q And not necessarily billed t o  the entity seeking 
i nterconnecti on? 

A Yes. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: B u t  t h a t  entity interconnecting 

would be i n  turn paying transmission revenue to  GridFlorida, 
would they not? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 
BY MR. CHILDS: 

Q B u t  do you know whether the revenue t h a t  the 
transmission entity would pay would cover the costs o f  

interconnection or would simply be i n  proportion t o  their 
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Asage? 

A I bel ieve  i t  would be i n  propor t ion  t o  t h e i r  usage. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Ms. Dubin, as i t  re la tes  t o  a 

?egional RTO, d i d  you evaluate what the  e f f e c t ,  p o s i t i v e  o r  

iegat ive,  i t  would have on a capaci ty clause? 

THE WITNESS: A regional RTO versus GridFlor ida? No, 

de j u s t  s t r i c t l y  looked a t  the Gr idFlor ida.  

COMMISSIONER JABER: I ' m  s t i l l  back t o  t r y i n g  t o  

Anderstand which RTO might be b e t t e r  f o r  the  consumer, and as 

it re la tes  t o  a cost  recovery mechanism versus some - -  capaci ty  

zlause cost recovery mechanism as opposed t o  some other cost  

recovery mechanism. You had not evaluated i t  one way or  the  

Dther? 

THE WITNESS: No, but I be l ieve  we would request the  

same methodology t o  recover the costs, the  incremental amount. 

MR. CHILDS: That ' s  a l l  I have on r e d i r e c t .  I would 

l i k e  t o  move i n t o  evidence Ms. Dubin's e x h i b i t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very w e l l .  Without ob ject ion,  show 

Exh ib i t  18 i s  admitted and Exh ib i t  19 i s  a l a t e - f i l e d .  

(Exh ib i t  18 admitted i n t o  the  record. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you, Ms. Dubin, you are 

excused. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  adjourn f o r  the evening and 

re tu rn  a t  8:30 i n  the  morning. 
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MR. McGLOTHLIN: Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes. 

MR. McGLOTHLIN: I have spoken t o  most o f  the  counsel 

a t  t he  t a b l e  here, and I be l i eve  there i s  no ob jec t ion  t o  our 

tak ing  Mr. Mechler tomorrow morning f i r s t  up. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very w e l l .  So Mr. Mechler, r i g h t ,  

w i l l  be f i r s t ?  

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Mechler, yes, s i r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very w e l l .  Thank you. 

(The hearing adjourned a t  5:40 p.m.1 
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